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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEERASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Lam Kim Phung, aged 80, is the wife of Mr. Eav Yin who
was the former chairman of the Board, an Executive Director, the
former chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company before he passed away
in September 2020. She was appointed as a non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company on 30th June 2022 and re-designated
from a non-executive Director to an Executive Director on 24th March
2023. Ms. Lam is a Cambodian Chinese and has extensive experience
in watch retailing in Cambodia, Hong Kong and mainland China. She
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in June 1989,
overseeing the purchasing function of the Group before she resigned
to pursue her own career in August 1996. Ms. Lam is the mother of
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan, both of
whom are Executive Directors of the Company. She is also a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (former name was Mr. Eav Ming
Keong, Kinson), aged 48, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Interior
Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree in Art, Design
and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University. After
graduation, he practiced in an architecture firm in London for 2 years.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 22nd
November 2006 and acted as a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company before his resignation from the Board of Directors
on 21st August 2015 as he wanted to devote more time for his
personal business at that time. Mr. Eav remained as a consultant
of the Company and its subsidiaries since 21st August 2015. He
was appointed as a director of three subsidiaries of the Company in
February, April and May 2018, respectively and he was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11th October 2018. In addition,
he is currently acting as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Eav is the brother of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna, who is an
Executive Director of the Company, and the son of Ms. Lam Kim Phung
who is a controlling shareholder, Executive Director and Chairman of
the Board of the Company.

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna (former names were Eav Xin Qi, Rosanna
and Eav Guech Rosanna), aged 53, holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in Marketing from Adelphi University in the
U.S.A. She is currently the chief executive officer of Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Before joining the Group
in 1993, she worked in a major international US Bank specializing in
local corporate companies. She is currently acting as a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Eav is the sister of
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan, who is an Executive Director of the
Company, and the daughter of Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is a controlling
shareholder, Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of the
Company. She was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 21st August 2015.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 65, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited (now
known as Glory Health Industry Limited) which was listed in the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th July 2014. Mr. Lai holds a
Master Degree of Business Administration from Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 53, has around 30 years’
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of
a firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lee is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Kee Wah Sze, aged 75, is a partner of Messrs. Michael Cheuk,
Wong & Kee and is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 40 years
specialized in both commercial and conveyancing fields. He is a Notary
Public of Hong Kong, a China Appointed Attesting Officer and holder
of Master Degree in Chinese and Comparative Law of City University
of Hong Kong and Master Degree in Law of the People’s University of
the PRC. He was an independent non-executive director of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 639), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, from April 1997 to June 2021.

Mr. Kee was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 10th August 2020. He is also a member of the nomination
committee, the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 55, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has around 30 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ETY-\
BIR[E515m A DT
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bl B2
2023 2022 Change
—E-= == 2E
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B & BT
Operations K
Revenue PN 711 785 9)
Profit attributable to owners of FEERAABFAEAZ RN 44 84 (48)
the Company
Earnings per share — Basic FRAFN-HER 5.84 11.22 (48)
HK cents HK cents
5.847% Al 11.227 4
Interim dividend declared and paid BEERESFZHERKE - 40 N/AT 3E
Final dividend proposed after WEPREEDIRE 2 RARKRE 35 40 (13)
the end of the reporting period
2023 2022 Change
—E=-= —F== 2E)
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET =R Vi
Financial position B 3 AR R
Total assets mEE 821 870 (6)
Equity attributable to owners of the HERAAREE AR 461 468 2
Company
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$711 million which
was 9% lower than HK$785 million in last year was mainly due to
the slightly drop in watches sales in China. The sales in China were
dropped by 8% from HK$765 million last year to HK$700 million this
year was mainly attributable to the drop in watches sales following the
lockdowns in mid-2022. The “Sale of watches” segment continued to
play a key role this year and achieved a total revenue of HK$702 million
this year. On the other hand, the business in the “Properties leasing”
segment derived a total revenue of HK$7 million this year, representing
a drop of 42% as compared with HK$12 million last year due to the
vacancy of an investment property since early May 2022.
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Results review E =)

For the year ended 31st March 2023, the Group’s revenue amounted
to HK$711 million, representing a decrease of 9% as compared with
HK$785 million last year. Decrease in revenue was mainly due to drop
in watches sales in China following the lockdowns in mid-2022. Gross
profit margin increased by 3% to 32% as a result of the improvement in
product mix with higher gross profit margin.

Distribution costs this year amounted to HK$88 million which was 15%
lower than HK$104 million last year. Such decrease was due to the
decrease in staff related costs, amortization charges for right-of-use
assets and rental expenses.

Administrative expenses increased by 8% to HK$28 million as
compared with HK$26 million last year which was mainly due to the net
effect of the increase in exchange losses while there was a decrease in
repair and maintenance expenses.

Valuation losses on investment properties amounted to HK$26 million
this year as compared with valuation gains of HK$23 million last year as
there was a downturn in both the property markets in London and Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs amounted to HK$9 million this year which was 50%
higher than the last year’s amount of HK$6 million was mainly due to
the increase in interest rates on bank borrowings.

Other net gains amounting to HK$4 million during this year as
compared with net losses of HK$5 million last year. The amount this
year mainly comprised government subsidies while the amount last
year represented mainly a loss from the disposal of an investment
property of HK$8 million.

As a result of the above, the Group achieved a net profit of HK$44
million this year as compared with a net profit of HK$83 million last
year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2023, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$194 million (31st March 2022: HK$208 million).

Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowings
over total equity, was 38% as at 31st March 2023 (31st March 2022:
37%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risks and, when
it considers necessary and appropriate, will hedge its foreign exchange
risks by using financial instruments.

Prospect

The Group currently operates 5 stores in China. The Group remained
focus on its core stores and has streamlined their operating costs
during the year and will continue to do so with a view to further
enhance the cost efficiency of each store. The overall sentiment in
the luxury retail business in China remains stable as compared with
last year. Looking ahead, the Group believes that the sentiment will
continue to improve as the pandemic is under control.

Apart from the “Sale of watches” segment which continues to be the
core business of the Group, the Group is also developing its business
in the “Properties leasing” segment and acquired two residential
properties in London in previous years in addition to the key investment
properties located in Hong Kong.

The Group is determined to increase its financial strength and
confidence to improve its business and take a cautious approach in its
future expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2023 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 53 to 55.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2023
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 11.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 9 to 11 of this annual report and Note 30 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is set out in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 11 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0469 per share for the year ended 31st March 2023 (2022:
HK$0.0536) to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 21st August 2023. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the final
dividend is expected to be paid on 4th September 2023.

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2023, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 92% of the total purchases for the year and
the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s top
five suppliers represented approximately 100% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
0.3% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 156.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

REREFFW

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS

BRamE

REFREMEZ ZEFH BTN Y IRAME5 -

151

AR A R AL BERRHE D IREE T BB R
BEBFIED NN ERERM T2o R m o s
*o

Bga

RITME R 2 T B B 15 ¥R R BT 5526 -

TEHEBRERF

BE_Z_ZF-H=+—RLEFE AEEKKH
JERI G AF EARBEFEL92% : MAEE L AHERD
Z AR AR B IREB AR A9100% ©

HRAEEZEFPERER  FRAEELAEPZ
BHEBRNEARBEHERTE03% °

BEE HETBMBEAXREZHAEE AR F5E5%A
tEETERA AR EEARBEIAHERS
BB E AR -

HERE

AEBERBEREMRFEZABEHERNF156H -

ENRSA

ARART ERAEEIRRTHITAEN BB ER RN
EBERBOIRAFEARERILRFAERNEL -

PR IEIRR

REARANERZAA REIME SREEH
fih,/ 2 B PR EIT /R BERBRNKEREHR
TERBMARELSARI2MARL BB KE -
Bk BERRX  GURARRZEEESHE X
BREAUZEFMEBEET - ARFCHERZESA A
EEERFARELNEETMARERBERR -

Annual Report 2023 |13



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lam Kim Phung (Chairman, appointed on 30th June 2022 and
re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
Executive Director on 24th March 2023)

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent
Mr. Kee Wah Sze

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-law of the Company, Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent and Mr. Kee Wah Sze shall retire by rotation from
office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible
and offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
shares of aggregate
HK$0.2 each/ interests to
underlying total issued
shares held share capital
BESR RERLERT
Name of Directors Nature of interest 028 TEER BB
EEpnE EEMtE HEROEE BMAOBESH
%
Ms. Lam Kim Phung e Bzt

(appointed as a Director on (R===——%xA
30th June 2022) = THEZERESE) Note 1 Fff 51 441,484,400 59.09
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna HERZE Note 2 Hf7E2 2,087,472 0.28
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan #5884 5L & Note 3 53 707,400 0.09

Note 1: Among the 441,484,400 shares in which Ms. Lam Kim Phung is deemed
to have interests under the SFO (i) 7,404,600 shares are personal
interest of Ms. Lam Kim Phung, (ii) 343,767,800 shares are corporate
interest through Ms. Lam Kim Phung’s controlled corporations, and (jii)
90,312,000 shares represent the interest held by Ms. Lam Kim Phung, as
the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin.

Among the 343,767,800 shares shown in (ii) above, (a) 291,210,668
shares are held by Century Hero International Limited, (b) 51,133,864
shares are held by Goodideal Industrial Limited and (c) 1,423,268 shares
are held by Goodness Management Limited. Century Hero International
Limited and Goodness Management Limited are wholly owned and
Goodideal Industrial Limited which is 87% owned by Ms. Lam Kim
Phung.

Mkl : AMEBEZTRIEEFRESEOIREEREERN
441,484,400/ B340 E & - (i) 7,404,6000% i (5 A&
B4+ 2 [EARED ¢ (i) 343,767,8000% 1% 15 A% Bk
SRLZ T2 ZEFAB 2 AR (i) 90,312,000
REEDIERM SR LZ T ABCEEEEEEETEA
SEBRITAF A ZER -

7 b 3 (ii) B it #9343,767,800 B 10 E F 0 (a)
291,210,668 Ik Bt B AR A F A : (b)
51,133,864 % 1% 15 F1Goodideal Industrial Limited$¥
A K(c) 1,423,268)1% [k 17 E1Goodness Management
Limited# & - £ 2 B X 5 IR 2 7] X Goodness
Management LimitedA M & B L+t 2 &% E - M
Goodideal Industrial Limited 3 /& Bl 22+ H87% °
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Among the 90,312,000 shares shown in (iii) above, (a) 30,202,800 shares
are interest of the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin,
(b) 932,400 shares are held by Debonair Company Limited and (c)
59,176,800 shares are held by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation
(as a trustee of Eav An Unit Trust). Debonair Company Limited is wholly
owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is the administrator/executor of the
estate of Mr. Eav Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Eav Yin is the founder, the beneficiaries include Ms. Lam Kim Phung
who is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin and her
children.

Note 2: All the 2,087,472 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Guech
Rosanna.

Note 3: All the 707,400 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Feng Ming,
Jonathan.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2023, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

In addition, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years
of age had been granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sub-Tenancy Agreement

On 15th November 2019, the Company as a principal tenant entered into
the Sub-Tenancy Agreement | with Honour Rich International Limited
(“Honour Rich”) (a connected person) as a sub-tenant, under which
the Company agreed to grant a tenancy of 3901-02, 39/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (“Hopewell
property”) to Honour Rich for a term of 26.5 months at a monthly
rental of HK$359,706. This sub-tenancy agreement was renewed on
28th January 2022 for a term of 24 months at a monthly rental of
HK$163,713. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 18th November 2019 and 28th January 2022 respectively.

The Hopewell property will be rented by the Company and leased to
Honour Rich for the use as office.

Honour Rich is a company owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung, who is
the controlling shareholder and Executive Director of the Company,
the wife of Mr. Eav Yin (the former Chairman and Executive Director
of the Company who has passed away on 4th September 2020) and
the mother of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna (an Executive Director of the
Company) and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (an Executive Director
of the Company), and hence are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the tenancy under the Sub-
Tenancy Agreement | constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A.

Save for the information disclosed above, during the year, the Company
did not enter into any other transactions which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)

independent third parties; and

(c) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, have confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions; and

3. have exceeded the cap:

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2023, which may also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

For those related party transactions that constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) under the Listing Rules but are not disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, they are exempt from reporting,
annual review and independent shareholder’s approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is considered
to have interests in the businesses which compete or are likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”) on 13th September 2010 but
the Share Award Plan 2010 was already expired on 13th September
2020 and no award was granted before and hence there was no
outstanding award as at 31st March 2028.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2023, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

ETEIRRZIEDS

RIZ-_=F=ZA=+—B BEALARIXFAEERE
ETBABMM > TIAL(ARBEEREIETHA
BRI RART 2B RAERBRO P EEARFE #
TTRARB% S E % 12 IR E 75 LB G0 EXVEEFE2 5
BN WZEXARMARFWE » R BERARFFAFE
ZERMRRE S R EGIIFEIB6HATHE 21
HIORR

Number of
ordinary shares

and underlying Approximate

shares (if any) percentage

Capacity of HK$0.2 of issued

Name of shareholder (Notes) Notes each held share capital

BESR2BTZ

54 ZERRHEAER HEBRTRE

RER A B (Bt &) Bt 5 R (F) 2= BABEDSH

%

Century Hero International Limited 7 BIEX B[R A A 5 1 291,210,668 38.98

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding

Corporation Corporation 5 2 59,176,800 7.92

Goodideal Industrial Limited Goodideal Industrial Limited 5 3 51,133,864 6.84

Covenhills Limited Covenhills Limited 5 4 64,255,243 8.60
Notes: W -

1. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung 1. HHEEBERAFENESBELLIZEHE ezt

who is a director of this company.

2. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is the trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lam Kim
Phung who'is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin and
her children.

3. Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is a
director of this company.

4. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late Mr.
Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Mr.
Leong Siew Khuen.

5. Beneficial owner.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Company. Save as disclosed above, as at
31st March 2023, there was no other person (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who was recorded in the register
of the Company as having an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2023, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 103 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2023. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends with incentive such as discretionary bonus.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i)  reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;

(iii) promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for
collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers;
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(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

The environmental, social and governance report is set out on pages 38
to 45 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets
of the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and China and regularly reviews the
existing staff benefits for improvement. The Group provides good
quality services to the customers and maintains a good relationship
with them. The Group is able to establish trusting and long-standing
business relationships with the major customers. The Group also
maintains effective communication and develops long-term and stable
relationships with its suppliers. During the year, there was no material
dispute or disagreement between the Group and its customers or
suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31st March 2023 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in China, Switzerland and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made some charitable donations.
Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws of the Company, dividends may be paid out
of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the Company,
out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other factors
which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant from
time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and payment
of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the historical
declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company does not
have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2023 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Guech Rosanna
Director

Hong Kong, 26th June 2023
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PREIBWS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2023 except for the deviation from the code provisions
C.2.1 to C.2.9, C.3.83 and those discussed below:

In respect of Code Provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 of the Code, since the
deceased of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman on 4th September 2020,
the position of the Chairman has been vacant. The function of the
chief executive officer is divided between the remaining Executive
Directors. The Board of the Company as a whole and the Executive
Directors have discharged the duties of the Chairman. On 30th June
2022, Ms. Lam Kim Phung was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Thereafter, the Company has
fully complied with the Code Provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 of the Code.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bound by the provision of the 1989 Act, at this
time, the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements
of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed at the special
general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of
the Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save for a director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years; (ii)
a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general meeting
instead of a special resolution; (iii) any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, instead of the next annual general
meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, the Chairman of the
Board will voluntarily retire as director at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting.
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Code Provision C.3.3 stipulates that directors should clearly
understand delegation arrangements in place. The Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the
key terms and conditions of their appointments. Except for the
appointments of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2020 and the appointment of Ms.
Lam Kim Phung as a non-executive Director of the Company, the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company in June 2022, and her redesignation as an Executive
Director of the Company in March 2023, the Company has not entered
into any written letters of appointment with its Directors.

However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors have already
been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to directors of
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to act in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all of them are
well established in their professions and (iii) the current arrangement
has been adopted by the Company for several years and has proven to
be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the Directors are able
to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective manner under the
current arrangement.

Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules provides that an issuer must establish
a nomination committee chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director. Since the deceased of Mr. Eav Yin
on 4th September 2020, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
has been vacant. On 30th June 2022, Ms. Lam Kim Phung was
appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company, the Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee, and
thereafter, the Company has fully complied with the Rule 3.27A of the
Listing Rules.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

Compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers

All Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2023.
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PREIBWS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent and
objective decision making process for the best interests of the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to be
independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 4 regular Board meetings
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 3 Remuneration
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Committee meetings and 3 Nomination Committee meetings were REZLEBEees KREFNzEeaz s EFELETIER
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these o
meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meeting meeting
EEps Exges EnZE9e3 FHzEseg REZEEY
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lam Kim Phung mweRzt 2/2 N/AT i F N/AT 3 11
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan ol-370 4 4/4 N/AT i F N/AT i N/AT 3
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna e 4/4 N/AT i3 A N/AT 38 A N/ATT 38 A
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming BEALAE 4/4 2/2 3/3 3/3
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEHEAE 4/4 2/2 3/3 3/3
Mr. Kee Wah Sze foELT L 4/4 2/2 3/3 3/3

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna is the sister of Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
who are both Executive Directors of the Company. Ms. Lam Kim Phung
is an Executive Director, Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company, is the mother of Ms. Eav
Guech Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan. Save as disclosed
herein, there is no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board or between the
Chairman and the chief executive officer.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Since the deceased of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman on 4th September
2020, the position of Chairman has been vacant while the function of
the chief executive officer is divided between the remaining Executive
Directors.

On 30th June 2022, Ms. Lam Kim Phung was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. On 24th
March 2023, Ms. Lam was re-designated as an Executive Director of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, except for appointment of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as
independent executive Director of the Company in August 2020 and the
appointment of Ms. Lam Kim Phung as a non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2022 for a term of 3 years, the other non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are not less exacting than those in the Code. On 24th March
2023, Ms. Lam was re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises Ms. Lam Kim Phung as an
Executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is vacant since
the deceased of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman on 4th September 2020,
until the appointment of Ms. Lam Kim Phung as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 30th June 2022.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 3 meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors.
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NOMINATION POLICY
1. OBJECTIVE

This policy was approved and adopted by the board of directors
of the Company (“the Board”) by resolution passed on 23rd
November 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-
elected as directors of the Company.

2. NOMINATION CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship:

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board;

. Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the listing rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited applicable to the Company (the “Listing
Rules”) and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules;

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business or as suggested by the Board.

3. NOMINATION PROCESS
3.1. Nomination by the Nomination Committee

3.1.1 The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board periodically and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination
Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the Committee, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out in section 2;

3.1.3 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable);
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3.1.4 The Nomination Committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

3.2. Re-election of Director at Annual General Meeting

3.2.1 In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and shall be eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting;

3.2.2 The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director. The Nomination Committee shall also
review the expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring director, who offered himself/herself for re-
election at the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in section 2;

3.2.3 Based on the review made by Nomination Committee,
the Board shall make recommendations to
shareholders on candidates standing for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, and
provide the available biographical information of the
retiring director in accordance with the Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make the informed decision
on the re-election of such candidates at annual
general meeting of the Company.

3.3. Nomination by shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may propose a person for
election as a director in accordance with the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable
law, details of which are set out in the “Procedures for a
shareholder to propose a person for election as director of
the Company” of the Company.

PURPOSE, VALUES, STRATEGY AND CULTURE

The core purpose of the Company is to create value for its
shareholders. It strives to become a well renowned enterprise in
watch retail industry that is trusted by its consumers, and a place
where its employees are proud to work for. Its mission is to lead the
development of the industry and set the industry benchmarks. In this
connection, it endeavours to maintain accountability to its employees,
consumers, shareholders, the society, and the environment. These
purposes and values shape the Company’s strategy, which are geared
towards building a trusted and beloved enterprise whereby values for
shareholders are created.
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PREIBWS

The Company’s purpose, values and strategy form the foundations
of the Company’s corporate culture. Its corporate culture is centered
on adherence to high ethical standards and practices, and striving for
sustainable development.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. As at 31st March
2023, the members of the Board consist of two female Directors and
four male Directors.

The Board holds the above policy is effective enough to ensure
diversity on the Board.

While the current senior management of the Company is a male
member, viewing from the Company’s perspective as a whole, as at
31st March 2023, the Company has 103 employees in total comprising
of approximately 71 females and 32 males (a female-to-male ratio of
2:1), reflecting a gender equality principle generally adhered by the
Company. The Company is mindful of the objectives as set out in the
diversity policy when assessing the candidacy of the employees, and
will ensure that the Company shall continue to follow the policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated according
with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement effective
from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
for Directors and senior management and to ensure that they are
fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s overall
performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr.
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall remuneration policy and
structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and assess the performance of the Executive Directors and senior
management. No Director or any of his/her associates may be involved
in any decisions as to his/her own remuneration. Based on the
review and discussion at the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
recommended to the Board to approve the Group’s overall policy and
structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31st March 2023 is set out below:

Remuneration bands Number of individuals

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding the Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the directors’ remuneration policy is set out in the section
headed “Director’s Report” on page 21 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2023, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,200,000 (2022: HK$1,200,000) and HK$350,000 (2022:
HK$360,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai
Si Ming.
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PREIBWS

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group and to review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. Subject to approval of the
Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek, at the Company’s expense,
independent legal, financial or other professional advices from advisors
independent to those advising the Company as and when necessary
in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. The Board will review the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanisms on an annual basis.

The Board considers that the above mechanisms are effective in
ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company secretary is Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, a full time employee
of the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on governance
matters. During the year, the Company Secretary has complied with the
professional training requirements under the Listing Rules.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company continuously provides updates to the Directors with
the latest developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to improve the
Directors’ knowledge and skills.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors

to record the training that have undertaken.

Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during
the year under review:

Name of Director

EEpg
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Type of
Continuing
Professional
Development

Ms. Lam Kim Phung

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
Mr. Lai Si Ming

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent
Mr. Kee Wah Sze

Note :

1 Reading journals and updates relating to the economy, media business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

(Note)
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PREIBWS

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
46 to 52 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to. ensure that their
effectiveness.

The Company has established a risk management (including the
environmental, social and corporate governance risk) policy set out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business. The Company has also established a
whistle-blowing policy and system to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and other matters.

As an ongoing process, the management has regular meetings with
the team to assess and handle the risk being identified in the daily
operation of the business. Significant risk will be reported to the
Board on a timely basis. The Board will review and assess the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year.

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department to carry out the internal audit function of the Group, it
had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group including material controls over financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. After the review,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With those
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Board has adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy in 2022
which sets out the Group’s commitment of maintaining an effective
ongoing dialogue with shareholders. The Company uses a range of
communication tools to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed
of key business imperatives. These include general meetings, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting
by poll has been read out by the chairman at the general meetings.
The Board reviewed the validity of implementation of the Shareholder’s
Communication Policy during the year and considered that it remained
effective in enhancing timely, transparent, accurate and open
communication between the Company and the shareholders.

At the annual general meeting held on 25th August 2022 respectively,
all directors were present to answer questions raised by shareholders
and a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman in respect
of each separate issue, including re-election of Directors, and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting
out the Proposal; and (ii) a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043
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RIG - HEBKREGHRS

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of environmental,
social and corporate governance (“ESG”) practices by incorporating
relevant policies into its business strategies with a key focus to build a
long term relationship with its different stakeholders so as to enhance
the value of the shareholders. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) has the overall responsibility for the implementation,
monitoring and evaluation of the Group’s policies on ESG issues.
The Board reviews the progress of the Group’s ESG policies with the
management of the Company on an annual basis.

REPORTING SCOPE

As the Group is principally engaged in the trading of watches and
property leasing, it is not directly involved in the production process
and hence most of the environmental impacts are indirect.

The structure of this report is by reference to Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. It is recommended that this report is to read together
with the Corporate Governance Report as laid down in our Annual
Report for the year ended 31st March 2023.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: Material ESG issues are identified during the
formulation of the Group’s ESG policies and
reported in each reporting period. They are also
reviewed on an annual basis.

Quantitative: Methodologies, assumptions and calculation
for each applicable key performance indicator
(“KPI”) in this report are disclosed in the relevant
sections in this report.

Consistency: Consistent methodologies are adopted in the
calculation for each applicable KPI in this report
as compared with that in prior years to ensure
comparison of figures over time.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL

A

Emissions

The Group is committed to protect the environment from its
business activities and workplace by implementing measures
such as the use of power-saving devices, the promotion of
e-documents, the use of recycle papers and the reduction of
energy consumption during non-business hours with a view
to stay efficient on resource consumption and reduce impact
on environment.

During the reporting period (i.e. 1st April 2022 to 31st March
2023, “Reporting Period”), the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance incidents with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on our operation.

KPI A1.1 and KPI A1.2

In view of our business nature, our primary focus of emission
is the greenhouse gas emissions coming from the electricity
consumption. The following data was coming from the core
retail shops of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Carbon dioxide emission from electricity consumption
(tonnes): 631 (2022: 673)

Carbon dioxide emission from electricity consumption per
gross floor area (tonnes/sq.m.): 0.6 (2022: 0.6)

KPI A1.3, KPI A1.4 and KPI A1.6

Given the nature of our business, we do not produce
any form of hazardous waste from our operation. Hence
our focus of waste management is to reduce the level
of household waste. Our measures include the use of
recycle papers, the use of recycle toner cartridges and the
promotion of e-documents.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had generated
approximately 5.5 (2022: 6.4) tonnes of household waste.

KPI A1.5

Referring to the section headed “A.1 Emissions”.
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A.2

A3

A.4

Use of Resources

To promote an efficient use of resources in view of the
nature of our business, the Group is mainly focus on efficient
electricity usage and reduction of paper consumption. Our
measures include the use of power-saving devices, the
promotion of e-documents, the use of recycle papers and the
reduction of energy consumption during non-business hours.

KPI A2.1

The following data was coming from the core retail shops of
the Group during the Reporting Period.

Indirect energy consumption by electricity (kWh): 553,214
(2022: 589,977)

Indirect energy consumption by electricity per gross floor
area (kWh/sg.m.): 525 (2022: 560)

KPI A2.2, KPI A2.4 and KPI A2.5

Not applicable in view of the nature of our business as
both the water consumption and packaging material are
immaterial.

KPI A2.3

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.
The Environment and Natural Resources

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.
KPI A3.1

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.
Climate Change

KPI A4.1

Referring to the section headed “A.4 Climate Change”.

The increase in global temperature in recent decades may
lead to increase in electricity consumption by the offices
and retail shops and hence the increase in our energy

consumption and carbon emission. As such, the Group will
continue to focus on efficient electricity usage.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HBREBRS

B. SOCIAL B. &

B.1 Employment B.1 Fh%

The Group has a total of 103 employees (including full time
and part-time staff) as of 31st March 2023 (31st March 2022:
116) in Hong Kong, China and Switzerland and complied
with the relevant labour laws and regulations in these
areas. Areas covered include compensation, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity and equal
opportunities, anti-discrimination, and prevention of forced
and child labour. No employee is made to work against his/
her will or work as forced labour, or subject to coercion
of any type related to work. Employment and related
documents are maintained by the personnel department
and are open to verification by any authorised personnel or
relevant statutory bodies.

KPI B1.1

Total workforce by gender during the Reporting Period: Male:
32, Female: 71 (2022: Male: 40, Female: 76).

Total workforce by employment type during the Reporting
Period: Full time: 102, Part-time: 1 (2022: Full time: 113,
Part-time: 3).

Total workforce by age group during the Reporting Period:
<25: 1, 25 to 45: 75, >45: 27 (2022: <25: 5, 25 to 45: 79,
>45: 32).

Total workforce by geographical region during the Reporting
Period: Hong Kong: 24, China: 78, Switzerland: 1 (2022:
Hong Kong: 30, China: 84, Switzerland: 2).

KPI B1.2

Employment turnover rate is defined as the percentage of
employees who left the Group during the Reporting period or
the reporting period of last year.

Employment turnover rate by gender during the Reporting
Period: Male: 22%, Female: 27% (2022: Male: 38%, Female:
33%).

Employment turnover rate by age group during the Reporting
Period: <25: 100%, 25 to 45: 19%, >45: 41% (2022: <25:
60%, 25 to 45: 33%, >45: 34%).
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B.2

B.3

Employment turnover rate by geographical region during
the Reporting Period: Hong Kong: 33%, China: 22%,
Switzerland: 100% (2022: Hong Kong: 77%, China: 19%,
Switzerland: 50%).

Health and Safety

Besides providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, the Group also
maintains good hygiene standards in our shops and offices
and prevents workplace accidents. The Group has a total
of 103 employees (including full time and part-time staff) as
of 31st March 2023 (31st March 2022: 116) in Hong Kong,
China and Switzerland and complied with the relevant labour
laws and regulations in these areas.

KPI B2.1

Number of work-related fatalities during the Reporting
Period: 0 (2022: 0, 2021: 0).

Rate of work-related fatalities during the Reporting Period: 0
(2022: 0, 2021: 0).

KPI B2.2

Lost days due to work injury during the Reporting Period: 0
(2022: 0, 2021: 0).

KPI B2.3

Referring to the section headed “B.2 Health and Safety”.

Development and Training

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to
employees in line with market trends which include medical
benefits and other staff-related insurance funds. The Group
also provides the employees with periodic job-related
trainings including but not limited to products training
and soft skills for shop operation, so that they can equip
themselves with the relevant knowledge and skills for their
work.
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B.4

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

KPI B3.1

Percentage of employees trained by gender during the
Reporting Period: Male: 75%, Female: 80% (2022: Male:
80%, Female: 83%).

Percentage of employees trained by employee category
during the Reporting Period: Managerial grade or above:
50%, Below managerial grade: 87% (2022: Managerial grade
or above: 45%, Below managerial grade: 90%).

KPI B3.2

Average training hours completed per employee during the
Reporting Period: Male: 20, Female: 26 (2022: Male: 13,
Female: 13).

Average training hours completed per employee by employee
category during the Reporting Period: Managerial grade or
above: 14, Below managerial grade: 27 (2022: Managerial
grade or above: 6, Below managerial grade: 14).

Labour Standards

Referring to the section headed “B.1 Employment”.

KPI B4.1

To avoid child and forced labour, the Group has measures
to verify the identity and age of the employees during the
recruitment process so as to comply with the relevant labour
laws and regulations.

KPI B4.2

The Group has channels to allow reporting of suspicious

cases of child and forced labour so as to minimize the
chance of such occurrence in our Group.

B.4

RIG - HEBKREIGWRS

52 AR IE 17 B3. 1

RIS HREEMR B NZIETEDL ¢
B 75%: w M 80% (ZE-_—F: B
1% 80% : Z01E - 83%) ©

RFESEZETHERNEPNZIIETED
b EBABHA AR 50%  EEAE
AR 87% (ZTE-—F: EB AN
EBA:45% : BEIBABLA TR 90%) ©

52 AR AL 15 17B3.2

R|EHPEELE LE TR T
o BlE20 KM 26(Z T - —F: F
M 18 T 13) ©

REEMEZRE TRMEISNEEEIER
BRI IR 2 - BIR A BSUA ERF
14 EBABUTHA : 27(=ZF ==
EBAEBRALRA 6 EBABUATHR
Bl 14) o

FLHBRIBARE| —& -
s AR 15 17B4. 1

ARBRETNRHISET  ARERHREAERE
RIREERZER TS M REH - 8T
HHER 8 TOEGI SOER »

SRR 5 17B4.2

AEBECDETREBMERET RABHET
Bt AEEBREAEEEEEREF 2K

&
&= o
=l

Annual Report 2023 |43



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HEBREBRS

B.5

B.6

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained strong and solid relationship
with our key suppliers by constantly exchanging views
on the business operation including by not limited to
the environmental and social aspects of their operations
which might involve the discussion on the promotion of
environmentally preferable products and services. With
a stable and solid supply chain, our product’s quality is
maintained. In addition, the Group has established goods
return policy to ensure that the customer’s interest is
protected. The Group also protects customer privacy
and supplier performance relating to sustainability. The
Group protects its intellectual property rights by constantly
reviewing the usage and registration of its domain names
and trademarks.

KPI B5.1

Number of key suppliers by geographical region during the
Reporting Period: Hong Kong: 0, China: 3, Switzerland: 0
(2022: Hong Kong: 0, China: 3, Switzerland: 0).

KPI B5.2, KPI B5.3 and KPI B5.4

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.

Product Responsibility

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.

KPI B6.1

Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons during the Reporting Period: 0% (2022: 0%).

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received
during the Reporting Period: 0 (2022: 0).

KPI B6.3, KPI B6.4 and KPI B6.5

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B.7 Anti-corruption
The Group promotes and cultivates a high integrity corporate
culture which includes the implementation of policies to
encourage whistleblowing and anti-corruption reporting. The
Group has channels to allow reporting of suspicious cases of
anti-corruption. References of relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, corruption and money laundering are
distributed to the employees and are reviewed on a regular
basis.
KPI B7.1
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
during the Reporting Period: 0 (2022: 0)
KPI B7.2 and KPI B7.3
Referring to the section headed “B.7 Anti-corruption”.
B.8 Community Investment
The Group supports and understands the needs of the
communities and makes donations to the needed when
necessary but there is no particular area that the Group is
focus on.
KPI B8.1
Referring to the section headed “B.8 Community
Investment”.
KPI B8.2
The Group made some donations to a cancer fund during the
Reporting Period and in the same period last year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SEN RS

A\ Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 53 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the significant degree of judgement made by
the management associated with determining the net realisable value
(“NRV”).

As disclosed in Note 2(j) to the consolidated financial statements,
NRV represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. The management’s estimation of the NRV is primarily based
on the condition of the inventories, market conditions and latest
available sales information and other factors as detailed in Note
4(b) to the consolidated financial statements. These estimations
are subject to uncertainty as a result of change of market trends,
customer preferences and competitor actions. As at 31st March
2023, the carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
approximately HK$99,955,000.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of the inventories included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s policy for making
allowance for watches and management’s process in identifying
slow-moving watches and determining the write-down for
watches;

° Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the inventory aging
report;

° Assessing whether any write-down of inventories to NRV at the
end of the reporting period was consistent with the Group’s
inventory policy by recalculating, on a sample basis, the write-
down for inventories based on the Group’s inventory policy;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
against their carrying values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant degree of
judgment associated with determining the fair value. As at 31st March
2023, the fair value of the investment properties was approximately
HK$361,550,000.

As disclosed in Notes 2(e) and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by the independent professional property
valuers. In determining the fair value of investment properties,
the independent professional qualified valuers adopted market
comparison approach, income capitalisation approach and residual
method. The valuation is dependent on certain key inputs that involve
the management and independent professional property valuers’
judgement. The key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
by the independent professional qualified valuers include recent prices
achieved by similar properties, current market conditions, market
rental, market yield and the costs of completion as adopted in the
valuations.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent professional qualified valuers;

. Obtaining an understanding from the independent professional
qualified valuers about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgement on key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

o Assessing whether the properties were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by inquiring of management
and independent professional qualified valuers, with the
assistance of our valuation specialists; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of source data used in the
valuations by benchmarking the assumptions to relevant market
information on sales prices and rentals achieved by the similar
properties in the neighbourhood, with the assistance of our
valuation specialists.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

We identified impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter due to the significance of the carrying
amounts and significant judgements and estimates were involved by
management to identify whether any impairment indicators exist and
to determine the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units to
which the assets are allocated, including, amongst others, expected
future cash flows and sales growth rate.

As at 31st March 2023, the Group has property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$82,688,000.

Impairment assessment was performed by management annually or
when there are indicators of impairment by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which the asset relates.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures with respect to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

o Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared by management and
discussing with management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts for each cash-generating unit and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast calculation;

. Evaluating and challenging the reasonableness of the
management cash flow forecasts by comparing the assumptions
made to internal and external data and testing these assumptions
with reference to third party documentation where available and
performing sensitivity analysis around key drivers, such as growth
rates, operating costs; and

° Obtaining evidence to assess adequate historical accuracy in
management’s forecasting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 1% EIMm R S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 1% EIMm R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26th June 2023

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mOBER

For the year ended 31st March 2023 #HE—-ZT-—=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EgE-= —E -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5 FET FET
Revenue EEWA 5 710,586 784,815
Cost of sales $H & A (481,728) (559,739)
Gross profit EF 228,858 225,076
Valuation (losses)/gains on investment BEMEZ(HE(EEB) IS -
properties, net ek 15 (26,097) 23,176
Other revenue H bz 6 4,972 7,262
Other net gains/(losses) Halez,/ (F5i8) F5 7 3,988 (5,079)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & M B A alz s - 12,954
Distribution costs 7 88 P AR (87,654) (103,558)
Administrative expenses TEE A (28,036) (26,012)
Finance costs B 5 B AN 9(a) (8,822) (5,999)
Profit before taxation R B Bl 5% F 9 87,209 127,820
Income tax FriS®i 11 (43,555) (44,505)
Profit for the year attributable AEEBEREAQATRZEAZ
to the owners of the Company v A 43,654 83,315
Attributable to: FER
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESF SN 43,652 83,821
Non-controlling interest FE 17 AR 4 25 2 (506)
43,654 83,315
Earnings per share SRER 13
Basic (HK cents) EARCEM) 5.84 11.22
Diluted (HK cents) s OB 5.84 11.22

The notes on pages 60 to 155 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12(a).

FE0BREF 1558 2 MBIt M 5k 2 Rk -

BERAFEEMN2BRENTARBARKEAZFET

B RAK FE12(a)

Annual Report 2023 |53



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GOBRRHEMEENRER

For the year ended 31st March 2023 #HE-ZT-=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year AEERR 43,654 83,315
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year XEEH M2 H (FiE) W
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently B 4siBE%E G rl e EF D EEBR
to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBEEZ
foreign operations 5 =% (12,076) 8,375
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T @#EFHFHIEZEZE2ER -
Gain on revaluation of equity instrument at fair BARBEFTAHMDEKE 2
value through other comprehensive income Bm LR S 699 -
Gain on revaluation of properties upon BRI EYEE 2 MESHRE
transfer to investment properties - 2,727
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the — A4 E H A2 @ (FE) /W
year, net of nil tax sk Z=RHIE (11,377) 11,102
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEFHEEEKE 32,277 94,417
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEE VN 32,275 94,923
Non-controlling interest FEERR R 2 (506)
32,277 94,417
The notes on pages 60 to 155 form part of these financial statements. F60H EE1558 2 Wi BRIt iRz 2 BB HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBIRIRE

As at 31st March 2023 RZ-ZT=Z=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E -
Notes HK$’009 HK$’000
B3 FET FAET
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HEER R R 14 82,688 102,113
Investment properties wEYE 15 361,550 377,315
Deposits and other receivables R Ko HoAh & Y BR 3K 20 3,620 4,165
Financial assets at fair value through RAn B AE@mZ
profit or loss SREE 18 7,554 8,327
Equity instrument at fair value through BARBEG AEMEEYEZ
other comprehensive income o T A 18 3,054 2,350
Deferred tax assets BERIEE &= 27(a) 2,418 2,418
460,884 496,688
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5 19 99,955 93,213
Trade and other receivables 25 & H A KRR 20 65,680 72,316
Trading securities BHE= 21 24 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREeEED 22 194,441 207,641
360,100 373,190
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 B H & 5 BR 3R 23 82,394 93,565
Contract liabilities EHBE 24 1,250 2,526
Bank loans WITEE 26 174,360 172,480
Current income tax payable BB FE S P15 T 18,616 14,505
Lease liabilities HEABE 25 19,998 29,127
296,618 312,203
Net current assets REEEFE 63,482 60,987
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBER 524,366 557,675
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Rental deposits received and 21 K 78 U
receipt in advance ZHERS 23 2,339 2,591
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 27(a) 26,115 29,115
Lease liabilities HEEE 25 35,209 57,497
63,663 89,203
Net assets EEZFE 460,703 468,472
Capital and reserves BAR S
Share capital [h N 28 149,424 149,424
Reserves i 311,282 319,053
Equity attributable to owners of the BERALATAFEAZER
Company 460,706 468,477
Non-controlling interests R RE S (3) 6)
Total equity A 460,703 468,472

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
RIEZ=ZFRA-TAAREEZSBBERRETE  IThTHIEEARES:

Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan Eav Guech Rosanna

o137 BE
Director Director
E E

The notes on pages 60 to 155 form part of these financial statements. F60H = F155H 2 WEHBA L B I 3RER 2 R ID -

Annual Report 2023 |55



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mOEREEIR

+—RIEFE

=F=A=

—EFT-=

For the year ended 31st March 2023 #HZ
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The notes on pages 60 to 155 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& O\ =Be
RBIRERER
As at 31st March 2023 RZ-Z=—=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation [ 72 Bi S A 87,209 127,820
Adjustments for: FEES
Valuation losses/(gains) on investment BEWMEZIHEEER
properties, net (ras) » F58 15 26,097 (23,176)
Net realised and unrealised gain EEERNAERZ
on trading securities gny=itid 7 (4) (184)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - HERBEZ
plant and equipment, net s FEE 7 (371) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB ARz W 31 - (12,954)
Write-down of inventories, net FEZMRE  F5E 19 668 6,223
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 R FOR B 5 1B 7 1,790 1,922
Impairment loss on other receivables H & YR BR SR (B 1B 7 4,792 -
Gain on lease termination HERIEZ W= 7 (145) -
Amortisation of intangible assets BT EE 16 =
Net loss on disposal of investment HEREYEZ FER
properties 7 - 7,673
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at &2 72 HaF A%
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) (AR EFAERE] 2
CHEEZANE
‘R, (W) 7 373 (554)
Gain on disposal of financial asset at FVPL &R AL ET AB@Rm 2
BRAE 2 W 7 (30) -
Bank interest income RITFBHA 6 (1,918) (1,165)
Interest expenses SN 9(a) 8,822 5,999
Depreciation e 14 28,949 31,160
COVID-19-related rent concession COVID-19/8 878 € Tk 14(c) (2,289) -
Write-off of other deposit S E b ik & 7 624 -
Exchange differences ERERE 2,890 (486)
157,457 142,279
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESRY
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M) RS (10,964) 12,769
(Increase)/decrease in trade and Z o5 REMBUIRR (M)
other receivables B (2,247) 30,965
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B REMEMERCRD)
payables 0 (5,407) 13,286
(Decrease)/increase in rental deposits B R FEN 2z HER
received and receipt in advance & O/ m (252) 45
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD) g (1,159) 13
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS E4XR&ECR$ 137,428 199,357
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B cHBRPEMER (41,595) (42,839)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund BREIEBNEH = 12,021
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EERKEEKZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 95,833 168,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

As at 31st March 2023

R-ZTE—_=F=ZA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= g
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Payment for purchase of property, YIRIREWHE - IS RE
plant and equipment (11,877) (3,663)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WS NEREZFAERE
plant and equipment 450 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEBHRIEB
properties - 18,067
Payment for purchase of intangible assets SNABEREE = (21)
Payment for construction of investment ST EEEEYE
properties (11,540) (15,653)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZAAXBFAEMEEA
at FVPL Wit 2 & & E Z 53R 430 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR ZATEHRE 31 - 7,553
Proceeds from disposal of trading securities %% 5% 5 2 15518 - 674
Bank interest income received B HERITHE M A 1,918 1,165
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (EHR) ELXRBREEK >
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE (20,619) 8,122
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ME XL
Proceeds from new bank loans RITHE E P15 KIB 42,400 80,000
Repayment of bank loans BERTEES (40,520) (71,934)
Interest paid on bank loans BITIEEZENFE (5,605) (2,367)
Capital element of lease liabilities paid EH%H&EEZEZIWB@ (26,456) (68,081)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENHEEaE M EEH (3,177) (3,743)
Dividend paid B s 12(b) (40,046) (40,046)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING EARBMETEZ
ACTIVITIES ReFHE (73,404) (106,171)
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRESZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N E 1,810 70,490
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURESRESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 207,641 130,663
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXxguH o2& FE
RATE CHANGES, NET (15,010) 6,488
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREGRREEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 194,441 207,641
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRESEEYERDINT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand BITERARFERS 22 194,441 207,641

The notes on pages 60 to 155 form part of these financial statements.
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in sales of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda
and Room 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively. As at 31st March
2023, the directors of the Company consider that the immediate
and ultimate holding company is Century Hero International
Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Century Hero does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26th June 2023.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property, including interests in leasehold
land ‘and buildings held as investment property where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest; and

- investments in equity securities

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(c)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(i)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set out in Note
2(u)(iii), unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable.
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment losses (and reversal of

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased
by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 2(u).

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has been changed as evidenced by commencement
of owner-occupation, the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use is considered as the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction iin progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(7)):

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see Note 2(h));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- other items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see Note 2(h)).

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that property (including the relevant leasehold land
classified as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

66| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

2.

EFE2E5ECR (18)
() REMWME ()

(f)

BENENBEATNE  DEBHEAE
BERGAEEEREEREREBNLES
A

BREMELRAARERZY) > BRIFERBEHR
MEREAEEREY  REAAEERD
BERI SEHETE o EE QR EE S A ME
FHERBREYEAESE 2 REREIEY
RIBRARER - REMENE S WARME
2(u) Pt A B ©

ERRENEELNEERNABE R REE
REYMENH D REE -

WYERERREEAMEREERERS
RWER  MEREREFZRERABME
REEREERHZ ARE-

LZERN )

AT - s ki@ B (FEEEB KRN
BRABREITE MRERR (B2
2(i) 718 :

— AEBAMERSAMBEEANEE
T REFHER (R HEE2(h))

- AKBEYWIFMEEGDIMERSANE
EMENHEEENERREEE &

—  Ha#EREREED (BEHEBRER
SENHEEENFRREE) (RH
F2(h)) o

fW—EMEREARREEZE (AT BHmET
BR)MIIRKEYE  AzDE(BELE
REREEEZABEESD ) REAERER
BEARZAABEZZENE M2 KGR
REtEfFHEETHRR HREZEELER
ERE FHELRASERERERER
F o

0

1

§ g

i

EHARAE

SHe

SR S



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over

their estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— trademarks 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gain and loss arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

68| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

2.

FE2 5Bk (£8)
() EEE=Z (BEIRM)

(h)

EHWBZBIEEE

BERWENAERARAEAFHNETERE
AR R R AR R R EBEA
ik - EAARAEAFHNETEENRE
REREENE AT A (E B F MR - [Aat
Al EMR AR R RE MR RE - &
AAMEMEDNZBRANEEEAR - - B8
Wi 1) B M (R TR R 4 A e SR T B A AR K
AR BT RABERBRTR -

ATERAEAFHNBELEES O HiE
FI R EARBETHESH - M A (AET AT EE A FH
T~

AR T4

REFE I KE B EE

REBAHTFURBOETLEERDE D FE
RIAL VIR ERKE B B R E GRIEE
FAR) HERR, o

REBE Gt IR B A BRA B F N
B EEGN S HERIZIERAR Rt #H R
ZEPRERR (IF) 25 PRk 2 ZEE
BERRENBLEERR - REBEHHU
BOAEEREAFMOETLEERKA
R EE R RFREBEALR -

BPEERHEXBHEAKIBEZEER
PEEERRBBEMN R IFER o KILHE
REVEEMEL 2B GmMBEBRZHERS
FRRFELZEENREERZZHtE -
WRZEER IR RNIREMER -

HEEE

AEEERANNREREFHEZAOR
TEHEXESHE - MaWABRERKEMN
T — BB ] O AT BB B A R RO
MoAZEHNBHEXREEE -HMEFPE
BIGARRIMNEENER RN ZERPE
MEFRANLENRE AR REZEG#DE

0

1

FE

i

EHARAE

SHe

SR S



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date,
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of

the Group

12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments (less any lease incentives receivable) payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred. Lease
payments also include amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value guarantees; the
exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(f)
and 2(i)) and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from COVID19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient, except
for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2(e); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with Note 2(f).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in debt securities carried at amortised
cost (see Notes 2(d), 2(u)(iv) and 2(i)(i)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned. Right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. FESFECR ()

(h) A

(i

IR

~

BE (&

TERAMA ()

BEAREEAX BB LETEHM
HBE o REAEEBHRBEEER
A BEMENNESEEE  HREH
FEASERED AR METESTER

SEMMEREAE RUESTAEH
AEHEREN  RRAEEENED
ERERERAE . ImEREEEN
FREECRES  AINBEHEAIIE -

EHESHBRLESCRIBEEEHNRE
TEATHHEREZES(((HE
el)  ERIEARBEBHNHE AR -
AN ZHEEEBRETENTE ° £
ZIEN  HEBBERBEEITNHEER
ARAMAESHR - FRAEETMRIREE
EREKBAEFTZE - BE—HPIINEE
#FECOVID-19% 5 E A H SR L -
EFEBEBMBRE LI F165HE
EAGBER FTH MV ERIF - EZEHR - K
SEFMARATEESETTHERESE
BELBREEEBE  THRER

EABRASMENR EEEHASE
BB RE R AR 2 B HER -

AEERGEEMBRARTBEHER
B2INREFER - REA/M BN
=N RHEERBEMNAEEY EE
RERBEHERE T - AREER
BHNFWBE -

Annual Report 2023 |71



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(u)(ii)-

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
lease is classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(h)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables); and

- financial guarantee contracts

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 180 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(u)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount carried in “trade
and other payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in Note
2(i)(i) apply.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether or not there is

any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
the allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
- Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss.in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report iin
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Notes 2(i)(i) and (iii)).
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in
the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see Note 2(u)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
Note 2(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(u)(iv)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. It revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.
Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less allowance for ECL (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing cost (see Note 2(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECLs) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(i)(i).

Cash at bank excludes bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

n

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(e),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the properties
are depreciable and are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the properties over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and

movements therein, are presented separately from each

other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset

against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts

(i

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts
(Continued)

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

(i) Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured at the present value
of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of fulfilling with the contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the products
or services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products or services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months,
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income

revenue is measured at the

is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sales of watches

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between
all the goods and services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to
be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
(other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets) measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(h)(i)).

Service income

Service income is recognised at the point in time
when the services are fully rendered and accepted by
customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the

same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Gourmet income

Revenue from sales of food products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the goods has been
transferred when the products are accepted by the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those
arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a
net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income and for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates and are not re-translated. The transaction date is the
date on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(x)

(v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company, the Group’s most senior executive
management, for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(@) Critical accounting judgements

In'the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i) Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the
Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the lease
term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised in future years.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties

(i

(i)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. In determining the fair values,
the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market condition.
In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes
to these assumptions would result in changes in the
fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. As at 31st March 2023, the fair value
of the investment properties was approximately
HK$361,550,000 (2022: HK$377,315,000).

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group
carries out regular review on the inventory write-
down policy and estimates the net realisable value
of the watches based primarily on condition of the
inventories, current market conditions, historical and
latest sales information and sales plan as well as the
aging of inventories to identify slow-moving items. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and inventories are written down
to estimated net realisable value. The identification of
write-down requires the use of estimates. When the
expectation of the net realisable value is less than the
original estimate, further write-down may arise. As at
31st March 2023, the carrying amount of the inventories
(net of write-down) was approximately HK$99,955,000
(2022: HK$93,213,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables which are individually
insignificant. The provision rates are based on
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 30
and 20 respectively.

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

(iv)

Income tax and deferred taxation (Continued)

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions.
and regulations or related circumstances change,

In the event that future tax rules

adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2023, the carrying amount
of current income tax payable was approximately
HK$18,616,000 (2022: HK$14,505,000).

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
as the directors consider it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and tax expenses or other
comprehensive income in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. As at 31st March 2023, the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$2,418,000 and
HK$26,115,000 respectively (2022: HK$2,418,000 and
HK$29,115,000).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model,
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios

the directors of the Company have

and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised any
deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

v)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly .in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections ‘and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the
smallest group of cash generating units, for which
the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

As at 31st March 2023, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment subject to impairment
assessment were approximately HK$82,688,000
(2022: HK$102,113,000), after taking into account the
impairment losses of HK$Nil (2022: HK$Nil) have been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are sales of watches (retail
and wholesale) property leasing and gourmet business.

Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax, other
sales taxes and trade discounts, (ii) rental income from property
leasing and (iii) gourmet income.

() Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service lines is as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

EXIWA

AEEZIZEXBABEREE (TERBT UL
MEMRERERER -

EREUABNG) R B R E TR RERFIE - 1
BIEE HtEERRE ST NEMEZE -
(i)REMERENTHESWAKGH)ERKA °

iy =BEWBRASZS

RIZEMIMBBINDZKEEFLENZ
BERALT

2023 2022
—EBCZ=F —EFE—-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BB REERE155REE A
within the scope of HKFRS 15 KEEFAEHZ RS
— Sales of watches — EBRIHE 701,523 769,899
— Service income — BRI U A 1,649 355
— Gourmet income — EXRIKA = 2,111
Revenue from other sources R B EH A AOR 2 e
— Rental income from investment properties — REKREYMEZHT KA 7,414 12,450
710,586 784,815

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets

is disclosed in Note 8.

6. OTHER REVENUE

6. HfthUxzs

RERRARHERLRHISE DI REETS
& BBV D AT PO MY L8R EE o

2023 2022
—E=F g

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Interest income on financial assets measured NEERATEcemEE
at amortised cost B U A 1,918 1,165
Advertising income BEEBA 945 1,055
Customer services income and others AR RIS WA R E A 2,109 5,042
4,972 7,262
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

7.  OTHER NET GAINS/(LOSSES) 7. HibUgE ~(6518) B8
2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net realised and unrealised gain on BHLEEEENRABRZ
trading securities W e S5 4 184
Net loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZEEBRFE - (7,673)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 RWERR 2R EEE (1,790) (1,922)
Impairment loss on other receivables H o e WAR TR 2 R E B 1B (4,792) -
Write off of other deposit M E iz e (624) -
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value % AR Bzt ABE ([EHAAE
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) ATABED CeREAEZ
DB (FiE) s (373) 554
Gain on disposal of financial assets at FVPL HERAR BT ABRRZ
2R EE 2 W 30 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEME #ERREZ
plant and equipment, net Iz - JHEE 371 -
Gain on lease termination HEL Iz W= 145 -
Government subsidy (Note) AT #8 B) (BEE) 11,017 3,827
Others EHAh - (49)
3,988 (5,079)
Note: et -
During the year ended 31st March 2023 and 2022, the amount mainly BE-_ZT-_—FER-F-__F=ZA=+—HLEFE B
represented grants obtained from the PRC government in relation to rental BAREFZANTRBNESSEASHBOMA -
subsidy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sales of watches and (ii)
properties leasing. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in notes to
the financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administration costs and corporate costs which cannot be
meaningfully allocated to individual segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in @ manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

8.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) DEIRE (£8)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets UTAREBEEDIMZ EHERA - $£E-BE
and liabilities by operating segment: FaEzoN:
2023
—g-=
Sales of Property Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HRHE HENE ABET L) @it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Disaggregated by the time of revenue recognition R 2 BE AT
Point in time REFEEE 701,523 - 701,523 - 701,523
Over time iz G - 7,414 7,44 1,649 9,063
External revenue (Note) MR (Hi2) 701,523 7,414 708,937 1,649 710,586
Operating profit/(l0ss) wEET/ (B58) 123,082 (2,046) 121,036 (4,814) 116,222
Valuation loss on investment properties, net RENZ 2 EBR  FR = (26,097) (26,097) - (26,097)
Interest income FIBIA 1,855 - 1,855 63 1,918
Other net gains/(loss) e/ ABR) 38 6,634 (127) 6,507 (2,519) 3,088
Finance costs BISRKA (8,210) - (8,210) (612) (8,822)
Segmental results DR 123,361 (28,270) 95,091 (7,882) 87,209
Income tax Fiifs 8t (43,555)
Profit for the year TEEET 43,654
Write-down of inventories, net MRFS - F8 (668) - (668) = (668)
Net realised and unrealised gain on trading securities BHBERRRAERL
e FE - - - 4 4
Impairment loss on trade receivables ZoRNER 2 REEE (1,662) (1) (1,663) (127) (1,790)
Impairment loss on other receivables HA YRR 2 B E (2,114) - (2,114) (2,678) (4,792)
Write off of other deposit A2 (624) - (624) - (624)
Depreciation ik (28,700) (235) (28,935) (14) (28,949)
Income tax expenses FifEhi 2R (46,555) - (46,555) - (46,555)
Deferred tax B 3,000 - 3,000 - 3,000
Segment assets NEEE 437,639 366,902 804,541 6,471 811,012
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBHABEZERAE 7,554
Deferred tax assets ERHERE 2,418
Total assets BEE 820,984
Additions to non-current segment assets REHNERDAHDEEZEM
during the reporting period 16,216 11,628 27,844 10 27,854
Segment liabilities PHEE 288,080 22,499 310,579 4,971 315,550
Current income tax payable EVEBRESmEH 18,616
Deferred tax labilities EEREEE 26,115
Total liabilities BEE 360,281

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. PNIEIE (8)
2022
“Z--F
Sales of Property Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
BHRHE HENE DEE AR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Disaggregated by the time of revenue recognition BREANE BRI
Point in time REFREE 769,899 = 769,899 2,111 772,010
Over time R-BEHA - 12,450 12,450 355 12,805
External revenue (Note) MRS (Hfat) 769,899 12,450 782,349 2,466 784,815
Operating profit/(l0ss) BEEF/ (BE) 107,770 961 108,731 (7,128) 101,603
Valuation gain on investment properties, net REME 2 Ak 38 - 23,176 23,176 - 23,176
Interest income FSHA 1,136 - 1,136 29 1,165
Other net (loss)/gains £ (B58) /haFE 1,929 (7,641) (5,712) 633 (5,079)
Finance costs BN (5,701) - (5,701) (298) (5,999)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries kNG PA 6 - - - 12,954 12,954
Segmental results LrES 10,134 16,496 121,630 6,190 127,820
Income tax G (44,505)
Profit for the year KEEHF 83,315
Write-down of inventories, net WREE 38 (6,223) - (6,223) - (6,223)
Net realised and unrealised gain on trading securities BEHEERARATUL
Lyt = - - 184 184
Impairment loss on trade receivables B IR 2 HEEE (1,852) (32) (1,884) (38) (1,922)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HERENE 2 EiE - (7,673) (7,673) - (7,673)
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (30,429) (619) (31,048) (113) (31,161)
Income tax expenses FiEBiE R (41,777) - (41,777) - (41,777)
Deferred tax BIEHIE (2,300) (428) (2,728) - (2,728)
Segment assets AEE 459,088 382,247 841,335 17,798 859,133
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARE \BHZEREE 8,327
Deferred tax assets BETEEE 2,418
Total assets BEE 869,878
Additions to non-current segment assets BEBNERBAHHEEZEM
during the reporting period 61,162 15,659 76,821 528 77,349
Segment liabilities AHak 331,372 21,119 352,491 5,295 357,786
Current income tax payable IR SEH 14,505
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBAR 29,115
Total liabilities BafE 401,406
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Biit: RERE-E - —F=A=1+—HItFEZHMI &
2022. DEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. HaBIRE (48)
Geographic information e ES R
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the LTAONNEERABIINGER 2 W R(i)yAE B
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s T MENERE REWENRRS RTEN
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and RIBZELM@E N - BRPEEHESE IR H
deposits and prepayments. The geographical location of REHEMEXZ I - FERDEEZEE
customers is referred to the location at which the services were WEEENEEZERMEEER -

provided or the goods delivered. The geographical locations of
specific non-current assets are based on the physical location of

the assets.
Revenues from
external customers Non-current assets
RENBEF 2 W= FREBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F — - —E=-= -
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic hEE A RAEME
of China, excluding Hong Kong BRI 699,517 765,275 76,741 90,657
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (REH) 10,053 18,334 245,530 257,681
Switzerland Wt 1,016 1,206 19,082 20,213
United Kingdom e = - 106,505 115,042
710,586 784,815 447,858 483,593
Information about major customers FAREEZEFEHR
For the year ended 31st March 2023 and 2022, no revenue from REBE S _=Fr_T_—_F=A=+—HIt
a single external customer contributed 10% or more of the total FE - WELSZEWAREEEEBWRE10%K A
revenue of the Group. E2BEHNEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. P& ekl
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEAEMNENG S (BEA) L T&IE -
(a) Finance costs (a) BFFERX7R
2023 2022
—E-=HF g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITHBEF S 5,645 2,256
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFNE 3,177 3,743
Total interest expenses on financial WIEAR B ABENSRE
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENHNE X HARE
profit or loss 8,822 5,999
(b) Staff costs (b) SIpAK
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including e LENHEMEF
directors’ fee and emoluments) (BiEESwReEME) 45,269 47,738
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RIRERI TSR 3,863 3,770
49,132 51,508
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
(Continued)

charging/(crediting):

9. MiRmuiEinl (4)

BRBEDEN DR GIA) L TEE: (8)

(c) Other items (c) Hfihag
2023 2022
—g=-= —EF=-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment ®EYE R B
properties less direct outgoings of B 1H148,000/8 ¢
HK$148,000 (2022: HK$138,000) — = — —4F : 138,000/ 7T) (7,266) (12,312)
Net exchange loss/(gain) P& 5 &R (W) F58 2,590 (300)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B R B &
- Audit services —ZE AR 1,200 1,200
- Other services — H b iR 75 350 360
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 2 - 1
Depreciation change mEBR
- Owned property, plant and equipment — B Z¥% - 22 L& 4,246 3,718
- right-of-use assets —FREEE 24,703 27,442
28,949 31,160
Write-down of inventories, net WRTE  F8 668 6,223
Impairment loss on trade receivable B ZREWERERZ RERERE 1,790 1,922
Impairment loss on other receivable H A E U B S 2 R B E 1B 4,792 -
Write off of other deposit MWsH H AR & 624 -
Variable lease payments not included RET=2HEABR R k2
in the measurement of lease liabilities Al S E R 14,879 14,823
Cost of inventories recognised WR ARSI ZTFERA
as expenses 481,728 559,739
EAHRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM2
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REBEE_E-_=ZFER_E-_—_F=ZA=+—
March 2023 and 2022 are set out below: AEFEBNES MES#IOT -
2023
ZEC-ZF
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances - to retirement
Directors’ Basic Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
EER BIRER
=60 Exge  FRERA HitER  SEEEHE @t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEAT FET FET FET FAT FAET

Executive Directors BTES

Lam Kim Phung (Note (i) & B () 179 2 2 - - 207
Eav Guech Rosanna BE 179 882 I - 18 1,156
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan o137 238 4,091 348 - 18 4,695
596 4,999 427 - 36 6,058

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent T 238 - - - - 238
Kee Wah Sze fEL 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,310 4,999 427 - 36 6,772
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESBM (&)
2022
—E-CF
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic  Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
ZHR RINER
EE 0k Y TEBL EER GhElEFHR @i
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FET FiET FET FEx
Executive Directors HTES
Eav Guech Rosanna BE - 840 73 - 20 933
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan s 238 3,899 328 - 18 4,483
238 4,739 401 - 38 5,416
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHTES
Lai Si Ming #E B 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - - 238
Kee Wah Sze REL 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
952 4,739 401 - 38 6,130
Notes: s -

(U]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Ms. Lam Kim Phung was appointed as a non-executive director
on 30th June 2022 and has been redesignated from a non-
executive director to an executive director on 24th March 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st
March 2023 and 2022.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March
2023 and 2022.

The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the
executive directors.
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10. DIRECTORS’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2022: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 10(a). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

(b) REMEAL

the other four (2022: four) individuals is as follows:

AuEmHFALF  —
M) EZZMERAK FE10(@)# FE - Ermar
(ZE==F Of) ATz eB8BmT :

R §5 ER R B 5F

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

N(ZEZZF: —

2023 2022
—=E-= —Eg--
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEXF ¢  EUREMER
emoluments 6,341 6,823
Performance related incentive payments RIBBE FUE 2,843 1,037
Employer’s contribution to retirement IR KA A FT &2 =R
benefit scheme 174 54
9,358 7,914
The emoluments of the remaining four (2022: four) individuals BIO (ZEZF:0O) Zaie A+
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFTINEE :

Number of individuals

A
2023 2022
—E-= —E -

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001,8 T — 1,500,000/ 7© 2 3
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,8 T — 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,001% Jt - 4,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7t - 5,000,000/ 7T 1 -
4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

11.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

REeRBRREANZPRSH

2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current tax B A% 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax REI TSR
- Charge for the year — RNEEEH 46,555 a1,777
Deferred tax BT IR
Origination and reversal of temporary BRMEECEEARED
differences (3,000) 2,728
Income tax expense i8R 43,555 44,505

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been provided for in the financial statements for the years
ended 31st March 2023 and 2022 either because the Hong Kong
subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses brought forward which
exceeded the estimated assessable profits or the Hong Kong
subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years, except for
subsidiaries which are eligible as Small Low-profit Enterprise*
(N FI 4 Z). For the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022,
eligible Small Low-profit Enterprise with the portion of annual
taxable profit of less than RMB1,000,000 shall be calculated at a
reduced rate of 12.5% as its taxable profit and which is subject
to a EIT tax rate of 20%; with the portion of annual taxable profit
of more than RMB1,000,000 but less than RMB3,000,000 shall be
calculated at a reduced rate of 50% as its taxable profit and which
is subject to a EIT tax rate of 20%. During the year, one subsidiary
(2022: one subsidiary) is subject to the relevant preferential tax
treatments.

The subsidiaries in Switzerland are subject to Switzerland Profits
Tax at the rate of 16% (2022: 16%). No Switzerland Profits Tax
has been provided for the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

The subsidiary in the United States is subject to Federal Corporate
Income Tax at the rate of 21% (2022: 21%) and Maryland
Corporation Income Tax at the rate of 8.25% (2022: 8.25%). No
corporate income tax has been provided for the years ended 31st
March 2023 and 2022 as the subsidiary did not generate any
estimated assessable profits in the United States.

*

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. OB EERNZPA{ETH (8)
OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at BERYHSEMIRERMNRE 2 ¥ -
applicable tax rates:

2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit before taxation B B4 Al VA 87,209 127,820
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LA B AE AR E A
calculated at the tax rates applicable to B& 5% Bl @ Al 2 & 3= 518
the countries concerned 29,224 33,007
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERMIE E TR S H 2R ZE 13,205 11,991
Tax effect of non-taxable items EHRFEETERGCIEE ZRBEE (8,235) (17,218)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses = fE K2 F A Z%RWJEETEZMZ% e = (448)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RWER RIEEE s RS E 7,205 11,729
Tax effect of temporary RAEHERZEREZR
difference not recognised 2GR 264 (506)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of AR B B A A) 2 R iR v A 2 TE L
PRC subsidiaries (3,000) 2,300
Withholding tax on dividend income from PRC & &5 /1 B [t J& 2 &) B B WA 2 38 40 ¢
subsidiaries 4,971 3,602
Tax concession Tt 7% 18 8 (79) (380)
Deferred tax on transfer property, plant and WE HERREERREDEY
equipment to investment property IR IR - 428
Actual tax expense ERHRIES N 43,555 44,505
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87t ¥5 ¥R 2R i 5
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (a) MEEEGEZEMKAVISEARSE
to the year
2023 2022
—E-=F =~
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared and paid of HK$Nil 2 &k & 1~ 7 8% & & %
(2022: HK$0.0536) per ordinary share TERESRT( T ==
0.053678 7T) - 40,046
Final dividend proposed after the end of WMEMRERRIRE 2 RBRE
the reporting period of HK$0.0469 (2022: % imA%0.04697% 7T
HK$0.0536) per ordinary share (ZZ =% : 0.0536/5 L) 35,040 40,046
35,040 80,092
The distribution of the final dividend is subject to the R 3% R BARR B 8 15 IR R AN A B FE fE AR SRR
shareholders’ approvals at the forthcoming annual general FRe FHEBRARIEE  c NEEEHIRET
meeting of the Company. The final dividend declared or K BY 2 A R 22 B9 R HA AR BF M A R A HE R RE
proposed after the end of the reporting period have not been RERAE-
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders attributable to the (b) HE—EMBRFEENERRR RS RN
previous financial year, approved and paid during the year: F R #BEAE KRS -
2023 2022
—E=-= —F=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous RERBHAERIKMS 2 E—1@
financial year, approved and paid during HBEEZ RERKRE
the year of HK$0.0536 (2022: HK$N:il) 98 E B AY0.0536/8 T
per ordinary share —EF EBHET) 40,046 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based
on earnings attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$43,652,000 (2022: HK$83,821,000) and the weighted
average number of 747,123,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per

share for the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022.

For the year ended 31st March 2023 and 2022, diluted
earnings per share equals basic earnings per share as there
was no dilutive potential share.

R §5 ER R B 5F

13. B8REMN

(a)

(b)

SRERRN

BREABFERBEFEBRARAFAA
JE 1k & %143,652,0008 0 (=T = =
83,821,000/ 7T) + LA R FA4F 25 47 /9 AN 4
i mAR 747,123,000/ 51 & ©

sR#EBRIN

REE_ZE - —FR-_FT-_—_F=-F=+—
ALFEzSRESRIABERERELRR
Fi-o

BHE-_Z - _T-_—"HF=-A=+—H
IEFE  ARTEAEESE N ZRD  BEit
Sh#ERMNEGREAKNZRMER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. A% - BB RBSG

Ownership
interests in Other
leasehold land properties
and buildings leased for
held for own own use Furniture, Machinery
use carried carried  fixtures and Leasehold and Motor  Construction
at cost at cost fittings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
REATI R
ERRAZEE  RESIRE
T REFZ fERZ  BE-RE HENE BER
BEEER HtEENX REE %8 R RE EEIR am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FET FAT FAT FET
31st March 2022 —E--F=f=1-H
At 31st March 2021, netof RZZE=—%&
accumulated depreciation” =H=+—H
and impairment MR 2 MERRE 29,744 45,514 18 2,197 2,939 657 - 81,069
Translation differences BEZE 789 1,425 - 4 7 - - 2,332
Additions NE - 1,235 18 1,574 2,126 - 199 5,152
Adjustment from lease HEB AE
modification - 56,272 - - - - - 56,272
Transfer to investment BRERENE
property (11,143) - - - - - - (11,143)
Eliminated on disposal of & i 2 74
subsidiaries (Note 31) (Fit7E31) - (394) (14) - 1) - - (409)
Depreciation charges FEEH (734) (26,708) ) (2,519) (785) (409) - (31,160)
At 31st March 2022, netof H-ZT_-_—%F
accumulated depreciation =A=+—H "
and impairment MK ZHMERRE 18,656 77,344 17 1,293 4,356 248 199 102,113
As 31st March 2022 i3
=R=1+-H
Cost A 26,873 292,372 1,619 34,278 23,912 4,724 199 383,977
Accumulated depreciation 237 E L FE
and impairment (8,217) (215,028) (1,602) (32,985) (19,556) (4,476) - (281,864)
Net carrying amount FEFE 18,656 77,344 17 1,293 4,356 248 199 102,113
31st March 2023
At 31st March 2022, net of
accumulated depreciaton =A=+—H:
and impairment MK ZHMERAE 18,656 77,344 17 1,293 4,356 248 199 102,113
Translation differences BhEER (1,246) (5,308) - ®) (131) 4 ©) (6,695)
Additions AE .- = 22 8,181 241 1,362 2,071 11,877
Adjustment from lease HAEBTZHE
modification - 4,437 - - - - - 4,437
Transfer from investment —~ EERH B E
property 1,335 - - - - - - 1,335
Transfer HHE - - - 184 - - (184) -
Disposal HE - - - (79) - - - (79)
Termination of lease BIEHE - (1,351) - - - - - (1,351)
Depreciation charges FEBH (601) (24,102) (17) (2,408) (1,480) (346) - (28,949)
At 31st March 2023, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment 18,144 51,020 22 7,17 2,986 1,268 2,077 82,688
As 31st March 2023
Cost 26,544 136,680 957 28,534 21,193 6,406 2,077 222,391
Accumulated depreciation 2t E L E
and impairment (8,400) (85,660) (935) (21,369) (18,207) (5,138) - (139,703)
Net carrying amount FEFE 18,144 51,020 22 7,17 2,986 1,268 2,077 82,688
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land is not depreciated

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms
of the leases, if shorter
Buildings 2 - 4% or over the remaining

lease period, if shorter
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15 -20%

Leasehold improvements 5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

Machinery and equipment 20 - 50%

Motor vehicles 20%

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

1

R §5 ER R B 5F

F RSB RRiE ()

Wit -

(@)

(b)

ME - BERZBAEREZ N INFRFAE
IE:

KAERE T TFHRITE

HEL 2%k R T4 B T F HA
(ARG H B%E)

BgF 2 - 4%HIEFOHBT
FHI(ARIE & BE)

BE - -RENMEKE 16 -20%
HEWEREE 5 - 50%HILELIER T

FH (ARG E BE)
i SN 20 - 50%
YR 20%
EAEEE

EREEERBBEERNIN ZREFE
DHTEIN AT

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

—EBZ=F T
=A=+—8” =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(hEss FET FET
Ownership interests in leasehold land and REBRAIABIIRFEBRAAE
buildings held for own use, carried at fair T REF 2B ERER - FIER
value in Hong Kong, with remaining lease AT -
term of: (i)
- 50 years or more - 50F AL 18,144 18,656
- between 10 and 50 years - 10E50%F - -
Other properties leased for own use, BITERAY|RBFIEERZ
carried at depreciated cost EmBEY R (ii) 51,020 77,344
69,164 96,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

14. % - BBRRE (1)

Hfet - (&)

(©)

EREEE (&)

REZERZEERIER 25 MHEI W
T~

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E= =
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ ZIEHEEEHFIE D 2 EREEENERR
by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land HE L RIEF A S
and buildings 601 734
Other properties leased for own use FHEBAZEMBEE N 24,102 26,708
24,703 27,442
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9a) HEBE 2B (M) 3,177 3,743
Expense relating to leases of low-value REEEEEHEEREMAY TREREEEEY
assets, excluding short-term leases of HHHE
low-value assets 611 715
Variable lease payments not included in Rt 8HEBER R RZAZEENK
the measurement of lease liabilities 14,879 14,823
COVID-19-related rent concession M IBEHER 2 COVID-1918 R & Z i
recognised in profit or loss (2,289) -

Notes:

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the Group entered
into three lease agreements for extension of lease term
of existing leases of shops and therefore recognised the
adjustment from lease modification of HK$4,437,000.

During the year ended 31st March 2022, the Group entered
into two lease agreements for extension of lease term of
existing leases of shops, one lease agreement for extension
of lease term of existing lease of office and two lease
agreements of lease term of new leases of warehouses, and
therefore recognised the adjustment from lease modification
of approximately HK$56,272,000 and additions to right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$1,235,000 respectively.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in Note 25.

116 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

REBEZ_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—HLEFE &
ESERERRAEFHHONEST 2 =HHE
S AEREEERTAZE 4,437,000
BT o

RBE_ZZ"F=ZA=+—-HILFE
W ANEERIEREMH 2RBEARTLN
A EHE REERLAEZHAHEEET
Y-MEEHEREAEERE 2 BT
_LEW HEWE  Hitto hlEREEER
38 #4956,272,000/8 T KON E (£ A EEL
1,235,000/ 7T °

HEBBZH BN ITERNH 25 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(U]

(i)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group holds several buildings for its sales of
watches business, where its facilities are primarily
located. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to time and
are payable to the relevant government authorities.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its warehouses and retail stores through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of two to five years. Lease payments are
usually increased every one year to reflect market
rentals.

14. W% - BBRR

R §5 ER R B 5F

(48)

Hat : (&)

) EMEAEEE)

(i)

BRIFEREEL W REF 2 BEHEE

m

AEEREZHEBTETHERERSE
% RERBZIEMAN AEER
ZEMFEER (BERE L2 MR
DR D EDER) WEMEE A - R&E
] 1) B LA A A TR 2 3R A MR )
FREa REBETWHEONGERBEAR
B S FRIR R R U AR P AR E R
fER = M HE PRI - BRAMN KA
BE NI B E) - WM T A BBUT SR -

FIFERMZHEMMAENE

ERME RS AEECERERE
MY EERERERTEEMNER -
ZEWEZMTEHEHRR—KRAE-E
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BRI SEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BR&EME

2023 2022
—Eg:-= -

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

At valuation HEYE
At the beginning of the year REH) 377,315 342,014
Addition NE 11,540 23,204
Disposal HeE - (25,740)
Fair value (losses)/gains, net ARE(E8E), W B8 (26,097) 23,176
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEEYE - RN ER - 13,870
Transfer to property, plant and equipment R . SR R (1,335) -
Translation difference BMEEE 127 791
At the end of the year RER 361,550 377,315

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to
seven years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessees’
options to purchase the properties at the end of lease terms.

Note:

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. R&ME (1§)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 8 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

(a)

BREMENARAETE (])

() DAEERGE)

FE_MHEE: AREAEERAS

—ARBE - BRE SRR R E
FE—F R KREBEKRTT
BRZBE - TABERZEES
Hi 58RI T E R 2 8z -

e ZF=ZREE: ArEFEERAE
AR 8% -

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2023 categorised into

R=—ZB-=(=A=+—-H2
AREFESE
Fair value
at
31st March
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
N-—E-=
=A=+—8
ZANRE F1BR H2BR HIBR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMEAIARE
measurement =
Investment properties: HEME
- Hong Kong —B% 240,500 - - 240,500
— Switzerland —Imt 14,561 - - 14,561
- United Kingdom —HE 106,489 - - 106,489
361,550 - - 361,550
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

15. R&ME (1§)

(a)

REMENARESE ()

(i

R EER(E)

Fair value measurements as at

31st March 2022 categorised into

KRB —_F=-ZA=+—82

L KE

NAEFEDS

Fair value
at
31st March
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-_E-_—F
=A=+—H
ZARE FE1E R Pl FEIER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FETT FET FET
Recurring fair value REEAARE
measurement &
Investment properties: KB
- Hong Kong — &% 245,650 - - 245,650
— Switzerland — =+ 16,623 - - 16,623
- United Kingdom — K= 115,042 - - 115,042
377,315 - - 377,315

During the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2023 and 2022. The valuations
of investment properties located in (i) Hong Kong;
(i) Switzerland; and (iii) United Kingdom as at 31st
March 2023 and 2022 were carried out by Cushman
& Wakefield Limited and Royson Valuation Advisory
Limited respectively, the firm of independent
professional qualified valuers with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being valued.
The Group’s finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

15. R&ME (1§)

R §5 ER R B 5F

REMENARAEE (58)
(i) FE=ERRIAEGTEEN

Relationship of

Range or unobservable

Valuation Key weighted inputs to

techniques unobservable inputs average fair value

BER FUBEHE

R E M TEFTBREZHE miEFH HAREBR

Investment properties Market comparison  Premium/(discount) 2023: (29)%-(2)% The higher

located in Hong Kong

URBBZREME

Investment properties
located in Switzerland

R In T 2 &M%

approach

5 L BUE

Market comparison
approach

5 L EA

to transaction price

(to reflect location,

age and maintenance)
RE5EH2HEE/ (F#)

(CAIRBg s B - 1R RIRE)

Premium/(discount)

to transaction price

(to reflect location,

age and maintenance)
RHERZRE/

(DA f B3t B~ @@&1%)

(2022: (33)%-0%)

i ——

(29)%-(2)%
(=&

(33)%-0%)

2023: (5)%-15%

(2022: (10)%-(35)%)

—E=F
(5)%-15%
(Z&2 =

(10)%-(35)% )

the adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the
fair value
RABRHER

@% DREDS

The higher

the adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the
fair value
RABRHER

AR RAEDS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. R&ME (1§)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

REMENARESE ()

(i) FZERILEFEEH

Relationship of

Range or unobservable

Valuation Key weighted inputs to

techniques unobservable inputs average fair value

BER FUBEHE

R B KM TEFTBREZHE g HARERR

Investment properties Market comparison  Premium/(discount) to 2023: The higher

located in United

Kingdom

UREBZREME
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approach
% LA

Residual method

BE=E

transaction price (to
reflect location, age and
maintenance)

RSB ZEE/ (H1:R)
(ANRB 2 - BRRERSE)

Budgeted construction
costs to be incurred

T EEZRERZERS

Anticipated developer’s
profit margin

BHMEREAMNE

(

GBP1,848-2,288
(2022: GBP2,048-

2,553)
i ——
1,848 8%-
2,2885 &
(=2
2,048 & -

2,553 §%)

2023:

GBP: 4.97 million

(2022: GBP:

3.33 million)

—TE-=4%:

4,970,000 5
(8=

3,330,000 &%)

2023: 15%
(2022: 20%)
TETF i 15%

TS F 1 20%)

=

0

FE

1

the adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the
fair value
R 5 B
AR

A=

#

A

Al

JEN

ot B

The higher the
budgeted
construction
costs to be
incurred,

the lower

the fair value; and
T EE s THER
BKADE DR

ERE &

The higher the
anticipated
developer’s

profit margins,

the lower the fair
value
RHERENED

B ARERE-

SHe
i

SR S

EHARAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. IRE M (8)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARENS (E)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) B=ZERAITEFTEZEH(E)
(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Switzerland is determined using market
comparison approach. Market comparison approach
is by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square feet or meter basis,
adjusted for a premium or discount specific to the quality
of the Group’s properties compared to the recent sales.
Higher premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of investment properties located in
the United Kingdom is determined using market
comparison approach and residual approach. Market
comparison approach is by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per square
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement. The residual method is a hybrid of the
market approach, the income approach and the cost
approach, and which is based on the completed “gross
development value” and the deduction of development
costs and the developer’s return to arrive at the residual
value of the development property.

The valuation loss on investment properties amounting
to approximately HK$26,097,000 (2022: valuation gain
of HK$23,176,000) are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

URNEBRRLT2REMEZALE
T AWML EOERE « MiSLLBOETY
RE2ERAHLEMEREF T REF
TIOREREEFE 2 ONEE - AEH
AEEMEEE 2 FEmEgirs (HE
MHIHE X LB PAS) EH R - fid
MELERFRET RS BEH
AEMSZARBERKS °

URRENBRENEN AL ERAD
SHBOERRIBREREE - MIGHLEIET)
RE2EAHLEMEREF T REF
TOREREEFE ZANEE - AES
AEEMEXEE 2 FEmEgirs (E
MHIHE RSB AE) FHH TR - fi
MEEEREEETERS - BEHE
EMBZARENRS - RIgRHEEA R
RTSE « Wan = RRAE - THIRED
ER[REREENRERKAR R E
RERRASHERDE 2 FIREE -

HEWMEZHEBESBENA
26,097,000/ T (— T - — 4 : (1A%
723,176,000/ L) R 4R & 1B < MR

7
e ©

(b) At 31st March 2023, certain investment properties of b)) R-E-_-—"F=—ZA=+—H BEHA
approximately HK$337,289,000 (2022: HK$350,992,000) 337,289,000/ 7T (—Z = — 4 : 350,992,000
were pledged as securities for bank loans as detailed in Note B E TIREYEBIERTEEERR - &
26. BT E26 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87t ¥5 ¥R 2R i 5
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BB &E
Trademarks
[EE:d
2023 2022
—EC-=F —EF-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost: AR AR
At 1st April R A—H - 276
Addition 1 0 - 21
Disposal of subsidia LERE AR (M3 - (297)
At 31st March - -
Accumul ation and impairment:
At 1st A - 276
Charge _ 1
Eliminz sal of subsidiaries (Note - (277)
At 3 - _
The a arge for the NFAZHEERADTAREERRZIITHE

3 o

solidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
17. SUBSIDIARIES 17. BA S
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March UTRINNV ZZE-_=F=A=+—HBFENBR
2023: eI
Place of
incorporation or Paid up Proportion of
establishment issued ordinary issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EFR AR 32 2% AR L BEAERTER AARRBERTRE
MEAREE HEDHE CEn BA/FREL A& AR A TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# i
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
BBENEE 10,0007 T 100% - BB
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
T 1,875,000% L% £ marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% ERERECHERERERE
BEEZEB(EE)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BRAR of China*
mEAREMES  128,403,300L AR - 100% BRES
BEES(ER)BEA The People’s Republic RMB9,715,200 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
HREARARME 9,715,200t AR - 100% EHE S
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
Bearm(F8)ERAF &0 3,000,000 - 100% BEES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FB)BRARA Bk 5,000,000f% - 100% miEERREERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
N2 EHRHE (BR)ERAR 5 3,500,100 - 100% DIEERRERES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% - Brand development and
Company Limited watch trading
BrEEEER AR A 20,000,000/ - 100% MIERERERES
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB4,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
BZ (L8 BEHRESHRAR HE AR AR 4,000,000t A RHE - 100% BHRES
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
KBERLBE/BE 17T 100% - MERBRERA
The Eav’s Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
EEHAEEERAA ) 28T 100% - REER
The Eav’s Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Property development
EEHBERERDA N 28T - 100% MmEER
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * BEPEARANBEZZTMAIIEBENE -

wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

18. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER }*"ﬂfﬁ-{-AEﬂ!ﬁﬁlﬂ s /If
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR NABEFANBEZE2MEE
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
—Eg-= g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FELETERZTS  BAARE 10,608 10,677
Classified as: DR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Z AR BT ABFZ 2SR EE
- Non-current (Note (i) — e B (K 3E3)) 7,554 8,327
Equity instruments at fair value through other BRASEF AEMEER G2
comprehensive income (Note (ii)) #2825 T B (BT 5% (ii)) 3,054 2,350
10,608 10,677
Note: HtaE -
(i) The fair value of club debentures in Hong Kong has been determined (i) BEBEMBEFC ARBNSR_FHmHELZERE
by reference to the bid price quoted in the second hand market. METE °
(i)  Unlisted equity securities in the United States represented (ii)

investments that were strategic in nature and was therefore classified
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

19. INVENTORIES 19. B

2023 2022

—E-= -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Watches =R

Raw materials [ R 32,541 33,755
Work in progress B @ - 400
Finished goods RIAL R 67,414 59,058
99,955 93,213

ol o SE R EA R A
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

INVENTORIES (Continued) 19. F& (8&)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAMZWIAGEERR I FESENDIN
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or mr
loss is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEZERHEE 481,060 553,516
Write-down of inventories FE MR 6,981 11,835
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMBER (6,313) (5,612)
481,728 559,739
The reversal of write down of inventories were made due to an REBEROTNE (LB G AT ERFE LY
increase in the estimated net realisable value as a result of change jJ B EHFEE MUR B E] o
in consumer preferences.
All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within one FiEFEBHEN—FRUE -
year.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. B Hfth EUIRR
2023 2022
—E-=F —E--F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B H R - kR E B EE
— Third parties =a=75 52,179 25,234
— Related parties — BEAR 4,611 5,287
56,790 30,521
Other receivables Hoth JE YRR X
- Third parties —¥=5h 4,136 12,604
- Related parties — BERAT - 2,286
4,136 14,890
Financial assets measured at amortised cost LA AT E v S pt & E 60,926 45,411
Deposits and prepayments e B ZE 8,374 31,070
69,300 76,481
Analysed as: DR
Non-current ETRE 3,620 4,165
Current wE 65,680 72,316
69,300 76,481
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. S5 RHI{hEUBESR (68)
(a) Aging analysis (a) BIREINIF
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its AEEBSLTFTEEHANPE180H 2EEH -
customers. The aging analysis of the trade receivables at the RIEER - RIBBRZERA B RNBREERE
end of the reporting period based on invoice date and net of Z2ESEWERZIRESTMT -

loss allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022
—E_-=F —ET-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days ENEAZE90H 52,777 24,467
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 1
181 to 365 days 181%365H 13 611
Over 365 days 365H A & 4,000 5,442
56,790 30,521
21. TRADING SECURITIES 21, BHEES
2023 2022
—EZ= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value rThiERES ARAE 24 20
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing FTHERFHEZ AL BURSHAREWHTZEA
bid price at the end of the reporting period. BAEEM -
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

22, RERRESHEMREBAESHREEH

INFORMATION
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BHERBSEFEMOIE:
2023 2022
—EB-=HF —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFHEAS 194,441 207,641
Cash and cash equivalents in RERE SRR R &
the consolidated statement of FEBReRERIT
financial position and the HRERRESEED
consolidated statement
of cash flows 194,441 207,641

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and on hand of approximately HK$164,033,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB143,611,000) held in the PRC as
at 31st March 2023 (2022: HK$198,362,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB160,579,000)). The conversion of
RMB denominated balance into foreign currencies and
the remittance of such foreign-currency denominated
bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market
rates which range from 0.001% to 0.75% (2022: 0.001% to
0.35%) per annum. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

R-TE=F=-A=+—AALEETEZ
ReRReSEMERERTRFERSOA
164,033,000/% 7T (185 74 49143,611,0007C
ARE)(ZF = —4 : 198,362,000/ 7T (48
%1 49160,579,0007T AR #E)) - AR
BEBEBREINERZEINETEBMIRTE
REHRLKTREZER 2/ EBFHEGH
SNEEE IR G0 R B RAAR RIRE -

FR - RIBITZESEMIGF R L - #@E
N FRFEE0.001%E0.75% 2 B (T ==
F 1 0.001%ZE0.35%) ° RITA BTN &
BN B EBENIRT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. SARKEhEIRER

2023 2022
—EgE=-= g

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Trade payables B FRENERER 1,939 5,432
Other payables and accrued charges Hib SRR R ETEA 21,408 24,473
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost DNE#EKkAtE 2 smas 23,347 29,905
Rental received in advance FERHE e 2,431 2,683
Deposits received BilkiEe 1,346 4,115
Other tax payable b fE A IR 57,609 59,453
84,733 96,156

Analysed as: DA
Non-current FER B 2,339 2,591
Current Vi) 82,394 93,565
84,733 96,156

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of

A E S FEMBNERRIEA R —FABE SRR

RBWA - FIZERIEE -

RIERR - BREEIER AP ESRNER

goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: MZEEBSTOT -
2023 2022
—E-= T F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Up to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 668 1,535
91 to 180 days 91£180H - -
181 to 365 days 181%365H - -
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 1,271 3,897
1,939 5,432
24, CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, BHIBIE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contract liabilities aHaE
- Deposits from customers -BP&E® 1,250 2,526

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HEafE
At 31st March 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RIE-_—F=-ZA=+—H FEEHEBEH
T
2023 2022
—E-= —EF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 1 year —FR 19,998 29,127
After 1 year but within 2 years —FIEERFRA 14,896 21,249
After 2 years but within 5 years M F %8 AF RN 20,313 36,248
35,209 57,497
55,207 86,624
BANK LOANS 26. RiTlES
2023 2022
—E=Z= —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Bank loans, secured RITIEE - FEA 174,360 172,480
As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the bank loans were due for ROCE-_=FN_T-_—_F=F=+—H " 17T
repayment within one year or on demand. BER—FANI BRI ERERE -

During the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022 and as at 31st
March 2023 and 2022, the Group was able to meet all the financial
covenants imposed by the banks.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 4.7% to
5.3% (2022: 1.69% to 3.65%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in Note 33, (ii)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination of
the payables to the group companies owed by Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of rental income from certain
investment properties.

HE-_Z - —FR-_T-_—F-fA=+—HIF
EHEER B =FRrR_E_—F=f=+—
B AEBEENRIBITIRENITBHERE -

IBITEEIREHEK AT -
REEBZETEBEERANER (MERENFE) &
BN TFREBLT%ES3% (ZFE - —F :1.69%

£3.65%) % -

N_E-—=FR-_T-_—F=A=+—H HiK
HIRITEETY E()MTHESBFH&EE’UEF%EEW (i)
BAARAREZARER - (BB EERW (BT
) BRABREE QR ZIREEMSFIE K(v)HE
ETREVMERSRANDBEEAEKIF -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
27. DEFERRED TAX 27. IERETHIA
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (a) PREIAZEEREEERSE :
() Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () BEHEEERBEZ AKX G
and liabilities =g
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGETERAERPERREL
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HEEE,/(8RF) 2HEKIHREE
position and the movements during the year are as BT -
follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of profits of PRC Write-down
Deferred tax arising from: NTEEEEBERE properties Taxlosses  subsidiaries o inventories Total
0% HEREAF
ENifiE HEES AAMER HARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiA7 FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1st April 2021 R-2-—&mA-A (12,939) 309 (13,700) 2,361 (23,969
Charged to profit or loss nkeks (428) - (2,300) - 2,728
At 31st March 2022 WCBZFZA=4-E (13367) 309 (16,000) 2,361 (26,697)
At 1t April 2022 \-E-—E@MA-A (13,367) 309 (16,000) 2,361 (26,697)
Credited to profit or loss FAZER - - 3,000 - 3,000
At 31st March 2023 Ro8-=%-f=+-8 (13,367) 309 (13,000 2,361 (23,697)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) #58 B AL I 2 4R
position
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax asset recognised in RER A B 75 AR 5 3R M SR S
the consolidated statement of EERIEE EFE
financial position 2,418 2,418
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERE B AR 0 R W sR A
the consolidated statement of RER BB EFE
financial position (26,115) (29,115)
(23,697) (26,697)

F‘H:\l N

=
e
i
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27.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$580,703,000 (2022: HK$537,585,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. None
of tax losses of was recognised as deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Tax losses of approximately HK$1,015,000 (2022:
HK$1,322,000) attributable to the continuing operations in
the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$27,687,000 (2022: HK$28,354,000) attributable to
the continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes. No
deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. As at 31st March 20283, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries amounted
to approximately HK$191,842,000 (2022: HK$152,282,000)
has been recognised as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future. In the view of the improvement of
the financial performance and market condition, the directors
of the Company considered that the deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$13,000,000 (2022: HK$16,000,000) in
respect of the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
should be recognised as at 31st March 2022.

R §5 ER R B 5F

27. EERIA (&)

(b)

(c)

RERAZIEERESERGE
AEBBEERBEA I EZEARBE
B 4 /5580,703,000/8 5t (—Z T = — 4 :
537,585,000/ L) + FER —NILEFRAE
SHEMES Tﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁfzﬂéﬁ‘imﬂﬂﬁk
RIERBEF o BEH KB BIEER A
MIBEE - BRAIEFT bf’EHjTE/EIJ ﬁéz
TERREEEERELCHBEE - RIEHR
IRISER - BIBEEIETSEE -

RABBEMESHME IFELCEEKRE
fepinas! lzmﬁ%réﬁammms,ooo%n(7?
: 1,322,000 7T) - A A E 85 R 2R
mA c WABAT RERELRELE!

ﬁ%m%?f%iﬂéimzzeszooo,am<_$::

4 : 28,354,000/ 7T) + A R K 45 oK 2Kk A
B (A EE LTI F5E %R) B A R 2R )

IR AR WERBERMEERRE
ERIBERE °

FE 0

BEE-_ZTZN\F-—A—BEEBNPEH
EMERE  RANECEREETIRRE
BB S E5%E10%TENT - 8 =
TENF-A—BREEKR - HPEHEINE
CEREEMBRIERZHATEHRBKE
S EREEBNREHSR RN =2F
TZNF_AZ+=-H FERAMREEBREMS
B #i(e008)15: MEA—_TZE+F+ A
=+ —BMREB RS R &E L BRI
ZREBEBHBRBRMEEZEZANET
%%%ﬁmm WZZEZ=F=ZA= +f
B - ARAR GG A EERF RN BA

m%%ﬁﬁvlaﬁmﬁﬁbm$%lmg
N B 1E P B R ER /9 )R 72 AT T R A9 SR AR R
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B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BBk
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
SREE RHEAR ]
HK$ ‘000 HK$’000
BT FR FET
Authorised:
At 31st March 2022, 1st Apri —E-__H#=/A=+—8"
March 2023 —E-_—FWMA—BHE
—E-_=F=ZA=+—H 500,000
Issued and full 2
At 31st March 2022 and 31st A==
March 202
747,123 149,424
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Bt F5 R R BT 5
29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 20. KA SIBI RN EREL B EE)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EARFHARRE
2023 2022
—E-= T
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Ffd 5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN s 236,205 239,714
Current assets REEE
Other receivables ot JE U AR SR 275 269
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFEY 597 618
872 887
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHE A B 5 E 21,934 21,935
Other payables it B AR X 3,814 4,129
25,748 26,064
Net current liabilities mEAEFEH (24,876) (25,177)
Total assets less current liabilities ®#EERABHAERE 211,329 214,537
Net assets EEFE 211,329 214,537
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital A% 2 28 149,424 149,424
Reserves s 29(b) 61,905 65,113
Total equity attributable FEREAQATFEA
to owners of the Company Z AR 211,329 214,537

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
RITBZ=ZFRAZTREREFTGRBLEENE TATINEERREE

Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

15 I 8%

Director

BE

Eav Guech Rosanna
BE
Director

EZE
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AAQATFESE
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REE =K T -__F=A=+—
ended 31st March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: AIEFEMAZARRREEZSSHNOT -
Retained
Capital profits/
Share redemption Contributed  (accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses) Total
REER,/
ROEE BABEERE 0N (RtEE) @t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEL FHET FET FHET
At 1st April 2021 RZE-_—-FmWA—H - 7,263 10,734 94,305 112,302
Loss for the year AFEEEFRE - - - (7,143) (7,143)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2@z = - 3 _ _
Total comprehensive loss AEEZABELSE
for the year - - - (7,143) (7,143)
Transaction with owners BREBALZRS
Interim dividend declared EERRX [ 2HH
and paid (Note 12(a)) iz 8 (FizE12(a)) - - - (40,046) (40,046)
At 31st March 2022 RZE-_—&
=A=t+—H - 7,263 10,734 47,116 65,113
At 1st April 2022 R-ZE-__FENmA-H - 7,263 10,734 47,116 65,113
Profit for the year REERF - - - 36,838 36,838
Other comprehensive income  Hft2H K% - - - - -
Total comprehensive income  AFE2HKFZLE
for the year - - - 36,838 36,838
Transaction with owners BEAAZRS
Final dividend declared BERRIMZRE
and paid (Note 12(a)) B2 (HfzF12(a)) - - - (40,046) (40,046)
At 31st March 2023 RZB-=%
=A=+-H - 7,263 10,734 43,908 61,905
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for leasehold land
and buildings in Note 2(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(v).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period (see Note 2(d)).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2022: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above.

R §5 ER R B 5F

29. R AGIEIFEARIA R R G iR 2 5h (48)

Aat -
(@) B (E

Bin i BRARE - NN\ —FBRERFEFL0
D) ([RRVEDER -

(o) EfhfERE

ERBERBET N REREMENYEERG
EMREL - WIREH T2e)r B ARBEE L i R12
FHEAHEREE -

(c) EXfHE

ER RS ERE SN EBM B MKRMELNPT
BERZRE - ZRHERBMF2VETEN SRR
BEIE

(d) B

BAFENEBEAREY  BARBLOE T

(e) HARER

AEEZHBABBRRABREAR T LF
SA-TABERMEESRAKRZ S - BA
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁZéﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁéE?ﬁE}E@ﬂ%HﬂﬁU& ﬁ)i@J
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BRTEATL(ZT==F :TA&L) °
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from deposits at banks and
trade and other receivables.

Cash at banks are placed with licensed financial
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group monitors
the exposure to each single financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

30.

o 35 @ R E 12 (£8)
(a) HMIHEEBREZE (E)

() EEEEGE)

TERBD A B AR & B e S B E R
LEZRUERO B ERBRER

receivables:
2023
—E-=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE IREAE BEEE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BIHER (R ) 0.99% 52,811 523
Less than 90 days past due #1 5> 1R90K 30.14% 700 211
91-180 days past due #1E1915180K 0% - -
Over 180 days past due 161 2@ @180k 58.69% 9,715 5,702
63,226 6,436
2022
—E -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEEX REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BIER (k@ H) 0.71% 24,643 176
Less than 90 days past due i 53 L 90k 0% 1 -
91-180 days past due #HI91E180K 4.39% 638 28
Over 180 days past due 1 H iR 180K 45.14% 9,922 4,479
35,204 4,683

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

BHERENENRBE=-FNERE
RERIGH » HRENTETHBIUAR
Pl LU &2 JFF S SR HA TR B0 A8 B RO - TR
N 7R B2 (8 1 e W R IR R A A £ A A
HIEAM 2 IR B R R ER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

o1 ¥ E IR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HMHERRBRE(E)
() Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1EEEE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of EWEF%%%FH&EE K2 AR
trade receivables during the year is as follows: FEE -
2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at 1st April RIWA—BZ% 4,683 2,761
Amounts written off during the year FRMESE (37) -
Impairment losses recognised during the year 4 A #2H E &5 18 1,790 1,922
Balance at 31st March R=A=+—H2&#H 6,436 4,683
Other receivables H i FE W BR X
For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the REMERERRIZESME + ARARE
Company make periodic individual assessment on the FIRBATHEE LS - BELR - L‘x&
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based E SEEAREBENAIELEERNNES
on historical settlement records, past experience, and EHEEEEMERKRANEZEEZ
also quantitative and qualitative information that is —M&@&F{‘Eﬁmﬁﬁ R - ZIK
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. RBEERE  BYIRTERIAR  ZER
The directors of the Company believe that there are no HHE fﬂ&l[ﬂﬁziﬁ%i* pne A A
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since SERE12(E A FEHEE BRI
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment @ﬁé{% e ZE_=Fr-ZT__
based on 12-month ECL. For the year ended 31st F=A=+—HILFE AEEFTR
March 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed the ECL for EMERERRIZeNTEHREEEIE
other receivables and deposits were insignificant and WAER - WA EER T EIERE
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
(i) Liquidity risk (i) TBEZER

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual T%ﬁ$%l§$téﬁﬂﬁ1iﬁ\$&iﬁﬁ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZHBTEHIEA - ?’]ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁ
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on NWERTE (BIEUES qﬂﬁ_p (=
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest WFE - AR RN REB R ZIRTA =R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SFE A BT )&ZJSEI—JQEﬁ;'%%ﬁ
floating, based on rates current at the end of the Mz xR BETE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on LEHE BESZERAZENE
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s T2 REKEREERZ BT
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBRERER A ERMNK (EMrﬁ
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be WEAESBRE B IREEFESRE
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their BEEEH) ZEFHBZHESAD
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
2023
—E-=fF
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BHRME R—FR SR—E48 SRWE
REE HRERELE RRER YRME BIREF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 [ E 4 JE ¥ B 3% 23,347 23,347 23,347 - -
Bank loans fﬁﬁ BmE 174,360 174,360 174,360 - -
Lease liabilities HEEE 55,207 59,696 20,414 15,988 23,294
252,914 257,403 218,121 15,988 23,294
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W FSERRBAE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

30. MFEREIR ()

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HHERRBRE(E)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE(E)
2022
—EF--
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BRRFR R—FR ZR-FE SHRME
REE Rensgs FIRE K LRBF BIREEF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 Nk E 1 JE[FBR 29,905 29,905 29,905 - -
Bank loans RITIEE 172,480 172,480 172,480 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 86,624 94,844 29,663 22,712 42,469
289,009 297,229 232,048 22,712 42,469
(iii)  Foreign currency risk (ii)) S| E JE 2
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are EEERRESF T A HIAFHARE
denominated in a currency other than the functional CERINGEEE NN EEEBIE -
currency of the entity to which they relate.
The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant. REB 7 E¥ERMBT 2E -
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) 7@ B

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 26).

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.

142 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

MERRA—HERTANAAER
KRR 245 B 5 ) K WO
Ealeiiael gz 0 c: s

AEBHEEHAIEZHMNERITEE
(MizE26) 2 B & il = Emkg -

AN B 7 B R T IR H R 3 @ b A R
ROBBEEAN X B 2 B R AE K F
EHRERTE - ARE YL BAEFEERME
TREBEROAEFAERER  IAE
By EERITES R T AEPEER -

jit o P S SR B A R A )



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued)

U]

Interest rate profile

30. MFEREIR (F)

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the

reporting period:

(a)

HFEREE (8)
(iv) FIEEE (&)

(i  FI=#ER

TRFMARNERZEENIRSH

RZMERR

2023 2022
—EC=f —E-CF
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
LIRS RS
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
FET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Lease liabilities HEEE 2.48-5.46 55,207 2.48-5.46 86,624
Variable rate borrowings: FEHEE:
Bank loans FIEE 4.70-5.34 174,360 1,69-3.65 172,480
Total borrowings BiEE 229,567 259,104
Fixed rate borrowings as a EERBERBREE
percentage of total borrowings 7 B2, 24.05% 33.43%
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2023, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year and increase/
decrease accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,744,000 (2022: HK$1,725,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
Other components of consolidated equity would
not change in response to the change in interest

rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
has been prepared on the same basis.

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances is not
presented as the management of the Group
considers that the Group’s exposure to interest

rate fluctuation is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as
bank loans and loans from a director less bank deposits with
maturity over three months, structured deposit and cash and
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Total equity comprises all components
of equity. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

30. MFEREIR (F)

(b)

BhER

AEBEREAZ BERBRREBANZER
BRI A BB EEE  BRELCERRRA
HREZSERTHRTHEAZE®R - BBER
BERARESREARRZER  EHEE
EHEANERE - BERM - NEEHUER
REBIEEZER  BEBXIMNBE - BT
MR RETHESIELREEE - ATE
HERBEARER -

AEBENEESBLER(HRFABRIAL
RAER) BB ER BEHFRAER
RITBEELEFEFORZMEA =18 2R
TFH - AEUEERNRe RBESSEDN
FEMBIRRKRATR - BERBEMEER
2o AREEERFE-ECENEESR
BRI - RIERARZEEB B EW
™~

2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Bank loans (Note 26) RITEE (K 7126) 174,360 172,480
Lease liabilities (Note 25) & a & #E25) 55,207 86,624
229,567 259,104

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22)  #1& : & RBE & =@ (H722) (194,441) (207,641)
Net debt B FE 35,126 51,463
Total equity R 460,703 468,472
Gearing ratio BEABLE 7.62% 10.99%
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W FSERRBAE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

At 31st March 2023, if the quoted market prices of the
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$5,000 (2022: HK$4,000).

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) RUEFRNXEIRZAREBEHS (E)
financial position (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) D EZEE (E)
The Group has a team headed by the finance manager MAREBRES AE LN TEAR
performing valuations for the financial instruments, which AREERESRE-—RNEEZLFME
are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, REBZEEHUKEEABE BN EEE
and trading securities which are categorised into Level 1 TiE - ZEFEZENM B RENERES
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the EHmE SFMNTHMNFERSEH - ZE
chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation BemRaEEAREREZB S TNMER
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is & WHP A TR E - B4 H
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting EZEECHEENBRNEREFETM
date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial Relem - M ERE BB =8
officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held
twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.
2023 2022
k- S - 4 —E--F
Quoted Quoted
prices Significant Significant prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBHE EATEE EXATTHER REEMS  EAUBE EATAHE
ZRE BAHE BABE ZHE AR BABE
(%) (E=@) (B=#) L (E—#) (B=#%) (B=&) ek
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FHT FAET
Recurring fair value =~ £X#ARE
measurements iE
Assets &E
Unlisted equity BRAEEA
instruments of fair Efh2EkE
value through other Z¥kEm
comprehensive EXTA
income - 3,054 - 3,054 - 2,350 - 2,350
Financial assets at fair AR EFFA
value through profitor %2
loss cREE - 7,554 - 7,554 - 8,327 - 8,327
Trading securities EHER 24 - - 24 20 - - 20
Total B 24 10,608 - 10,632 20 10,677 - 10,697
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as bank deposit with
maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31st March 2023 and 2022 because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.

(i)  Trading securities

Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

(i) Equity instruments

Fair value is determined by reference to the bid price
quoted in the second hand market or closing bid price
quoted in an active market of the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

(i) Unlisted equity securities

Fair value is determined by reference to the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEMEAS
On 12th August 2021, the Group entered into the sale and RZE-Z—FNA+-H AEETLEEWH
purchase agreement to dispose of the Group’s 70% equity EFOUNREAEEREMAERAR ([Hie]) 2
interest in Reign Abalone Limited (“RBL”) and HK$12,000,000 of 70%% 4} E JE < 7 42 8 2 12,000,0005% 7T % 5
its shareholder’s loans due to the Group. The total consideration EX-ENTFAEEZ AR EH A12,000,000/8
to the Group is approximately HK$12,000,000 plus a notional LM ERAREERCREZSERFEREFE
interest accrued at the prime rate minus 0.5% per annum on the 05%FTE 2 BEFE - MR EWB AR ([Hie
outstanding deferred consideration. RBL and its two subsidiaries FEDETEREZREK -FHALEZHBEH
(“RBL Group”) is principally engaged in gourmet business. Details RARAR=ZFE-_—FNA+=-ZBZR% -
about the disposal were set out in the Company’s announcement
on 12th August 2021.
Consideration received: EWRIE :

HK$’000

FrET

Cash received BUE & 8,000
Deferred cash consideration (Note) BEER & KRB () 4,450
Total consideration BRE 12,450
Note: Bt = -

The deferred consideration will be settled in cash in tranches (of
HK$1,000,000 each) against receipt of the assignment consideration to
be paid by the purchaser over the next four years with the last instalment
due in August 2025 in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.
The consideration for each tranche is equal to its principal amount plus a
notional interest accrued at the prime rate minus 0.5% per annum.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

RIEE B 58 - R E R (B R R R U E B 75 X T
BRAEZR DB (551,000,000 7T) KRS ER @
RE-HBR-_ZT-AFNARHN - SHKERE
WAS RN IR REENERER K0.5%5H 8% % 7
a8 .

=

kEERREERGEZ AR -

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment YIZE - HEE R 409
Intangible assets mEAE 20
Trade and other receivables E 5 K E At B YRR 3R 934
Prepayment and other deposits BNREBEREMBES 1,090
Inventories 7E 2,688
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkREEEY 447
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A FE - AR 3K (22,816)
Lease liabilities HE&R (635)
Net liabilities disposed of gz EFE (17,863)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31. HEMBLE (8)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBASZINE :
HK$’000
FET
Consideration received and receivable B K fE KRB 12,450
Net liabilities disposed of T E 8 EFaE 17,863
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R A (5,359)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan due to the Group HIERMNAEBRRER (12,000)
Gain on disposal & s 12,954
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AT RELEZRERA (Rd) F5E
HK$°000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents LIRS KIBEEEDRE 2R E 8,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of BB 2R e KA SENER (447)
7,553
32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. SABHEALTRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its FRN - AEBEHAEMBEALTAUNTZRS
related parties:
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEIRASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBTEEBAEBHFM  BEINTFAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and RIESERETHREFH AL (I 10FTHKEE)
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is ZEREWMT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Short-term employee benefits REEERA 8,201 7,813
Post-employment benefits RINERF 54 74
8,255 7,887
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note & sazae st ATB ITRRA | (RETEE9(b)) °
9(b)).
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. EABMEALRS (@)

R §5 ER R B 5F

(b) Other transactions (b) Hfhxx5
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE=-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
ks FET FET
Sales of watch movements to HE FHREET
a related company ultimately BLCEEZFREBBR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B Sz
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —HEEERA 615 29
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HENRAEREET
two (2022: three) related companies BEEEEFRIEAR
ultimately owned by the wife of R 5= 5 A 12 il 2 M
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —E__F =)
RN (i) 3,075 5,519
Leasing of office and warehouse from one MBS EEZTREER
related company ultimately owned by the K is = de 2 —
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. BEARHERAE
Eav Yin ke - 764
Consultancy fee paid to one SNEMEFHBLCEE
related company ultimately ETREBEAER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 151 S A 12 il 2 — A
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin FAE QA (370) -
Notes: B
() Leasing of offices and warehouses (i) TAENRLAERERE
During the years ended 31st March 2023, the Group REBEE-_ZT-_=F=A=+—HLHF
leased an office and warehouse space to two (2022: EHE AEEHRERA=ERAER
three) related companies ultimately owned by the wife WX BT EEZTFEEREAE LB L
of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin. AVEINRE (2 —F =) @
[N
As at 31st March 2023, commitments under operating RZBE_ZF=ZA=Z+—H RBRELK
leases receivable from the companies over which SHEERWKAR (ABCEEZTRER
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and BENBGCREEN ZAR)RREY
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: AR
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year R—FR 1,731 2,251
Later than one year and BB —FERTBADSF
not later than five year 163 1,637
1,894 3,888
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging MERE 2 KEBHR N F0.25 %
from 0.25 to 1.92 years (2022: 0.25 to 5.08 years) and 1.92F (ZF = —F : 0.25F £5.084F)
related commitments are included in Note 36. T MR R A R R B RE36 o
REREFER Annual Report 2023 |151



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

32. EABMEALRS (@)

(c) FAIEBALLGER

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from WG T REET
two (2022: two) related companies BB RGCEEESZ
ultimately owned by the ME (T =% : WH)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled BEARE S REMIEER
by Mr. Eav Yin 4,611 9,078
Trade and other payables due to BRBCEEZE TREESR
one related company ultimately owned RiGCREEH 2
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and —EEEARE 5 R EMIRRK
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 491 491
33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEi
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were AREFEETRITEEEBEENT ¢
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=HF =~
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T+ R AETF - -
Investment properties BEME 337,289 350,992
337,289 350,992
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34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately, there is no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contribution.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Signification capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

34. FEIRMIEHsHEIHR

R §5 ER R B 5F

AEBRMERBAERBEIRY —ERNER
e (RESDE - ZREeFzEERN
SEZEBENRFE  AXEANESTAEE -

{47 A 18 5 R TN ER R TS 2 51 ) A9 R K AR I BK
A HEENAREERRES R BT R HRK

SO i X kS N

EHRBEREZEIDERMETZRAKGEIKE
HZRAREFEATFERFEE - AEEARBT
¥rpzm TP - SURKET SMER R - AEE
R Gt &I 2 BE - ERRE B 2R EFH

HK e

s8I 2 RSB - L RE R AT R A K

BRI A HERE K -

35. &ML

RBEMRDATNERBERRABENERNELRRH

reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: SEFIT -
2023 2022
—E-= —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contracted for: BET49 ¢
Property, plant and equipment Y - B RERE 1,445 -
Construction work for properties MEZEETR 7,810 11,637
9,255 11,637
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. @ESASHIE
The Group as lessor REBEFREMEA

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

FHEE 2 BB ARUBRBEENHERIWT

2023 2022
g2 = g

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year B —F 5,921 6,490
Later than one year and not R —FRTBRASF

later than five years 8,198 13,365

14,119 19,855
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 37. LR GESEME
FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities AREEIaEENaEZEHER
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TERFVWNAREFRARE EHEENARBE 2 E T -
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEAe MR EH ARERHEEANEE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for DIREREBELEHRRAEREFEEREE LS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in SR TERANEAXEME T RS RE
the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows -k

from financing activities.

Interest
payable
Bank for Lease
loans bank loans liabilities Total
ENRIT
RITEE BEFR HEARE #Et
(Note 26) (Note 25)
(H15#26) (Ktat25)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2021 R-_ZE_—FmMA—H 164,090 209 96,245 260,544
Changes in financing cash flow: g &% % & &%)
Proceeds from new bank loan BITHEEB B 80,000 - - 80,000
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITEE (71,934) - - (71,934)
Interest paid 2ATFE - (2,367) - (2,367)
Capital element of lease liabilities EAIHEBEZ EARE S
paid - - (68,081) (68,081)
Interest element of lease liabilities & 178 & & & 2 | 2.3 5
paid - - (3,743) (3,743)
Non-cash changes: FEH & B -
Increased in lease liabilities from R FHEE >
entering into new leases HE 8 EE M
during the year - - 1,285 1,235
Adjustment from lease HEEHAE
modification - - 56,272 56,272
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 % 324 - 1,588 1,912
Interest expenses A B - 2,256 3,743 5,999
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A - - (635) (635)
At 31st March 2022 R-ZE-_—_F#=ZA=+—H 172,480 98 86,624 259,202
At 1st April 2022 R-B-_—_FWmA—H 172,480 98 86,624 259,202
Changes in financing cash flow: BEE 2 K285 -
Proceeds from new bank loan $R{THEEFREBHRE 42,400 - - 42,400
Repayment of bank loans EERTEE (40,520) - - (40,520)
Interest paid 2FFE - (5,605) - (5,605)
Capital element of lease ENEEEEIERTD
liabilities paid - - (26,456) (26,456)
Interest element of lease eNHEEEaEZAESD
liabilities paid - - (3,177) (3,177)
Non-cash changes: HHELEE
Adjustment from lease HEBSHAE
modification - - 4,437 4,437
Exchange adjustments ERAR - - (5,613) (5,613)
Interest expenses FIEREX - 5,645 3,177 8,822
Gain on termination of lease RIEEEZWE - - (1,496) (1,496)
COVID-19-related rent COVID-19/H B £ E iR
concession - - (2,289) (2,289)
At 31st March 2023 R-ZBE-_=F=A=+—H 174,360 138 55,207 229,705
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2023 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

HKFRS 17 and related Insurance Contracts'

Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 and Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2023 #HE-ZT-=F=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS E 45

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1t—HLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

—hFE Z—ZE-TF T —ET-__ —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fi&T FET FET FET
Revenue EEIRA 934,520 800,051 1,164,981 784,815 710,586
Profit/(loss) before taxation KA (E518) 87,332 (142,270) 91,469 127,820 87,209
Income tax P15 7% (16,870) (6,452) (35,710) (44,505) (43,555)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEWRAN S (FiE) 70,462 (148,722) 55,759 83,315 43,654

Equity attributable to 5B

owners of the Company ZN/NEIES Y SN 70,462 (146,174) 58,542 83,821 43,652
Non-controlling interests FEE AR A 2 - (2,548) (2,783) (5086) 2
70,462 (148,722) 55,759 83,315 43,654

Basic earnings/(loss) per share & & AZF| ~ (E1E)  9.03¢HE (L~ (19.56)¢ 1Ll 7.84¢E L 11.22¢8 1l 5.84¢58 1l

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENG(E

As at 31st March

R=H=+-—AH

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

—F-NE _—F_FTFE _—F-_—F _FT__ —EBC-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET FEr FET FET

Total assets mEE 816,225 806,781 814,730 869,878 820,984

Total liabilities BwaE 293,128 465,372 405,988 401,406 360,281

Net assets BEFH 523,097 341,409 408,742 468,472 460,703
Equity attributable to BBRARQ

owners of the Company ﬁ/\Z*fgm 523,097 343,484 413,600 468,477 460,706

Non-controlling interests FEIERRE = - (2,075) (4,858) (5) (3)

Total equity Y L 523,097 341,409 408,742 468,472 460,703

FH:\[ N

i
S
i
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